Public Document Pack

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION
DATE:

Monday, 10 May 2021

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:
HG1 2AE

Council Chamber - Civic Centre, St Luke's Avenue, Harrogate,

Notice is hereby given that the above meeting will take place for the purpose
following and, by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972,
any other matter(s) which the Chair considers should be dealt with at the meeting
as a matter of urgency.
AGENDA
Item Title
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF
SUBSTITUTES:

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:
Members to advise of any declarations of interest.

3.

MINUTES:
Of the meeting of 12 April 2021.

4.

EXEMPT INFORMATION:
To determine whether to exclude the press and public during the
consideration of any exempt items.

5.

PUBLIC ARRANGEMENTS- QUESTIONS:
To consider any questions under Standing Order 27.

Page
Number

5 - 10

MATTERS HOLDING THE EXECUTIVE TO ACCOUNT
6.

COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY FRAMEWORK - UPDATE AND
PRIORITIES FOR 2021/22:
A report in the name of the Director of Economy and Culture was
submitted, the attached report was submitted to Cabinet on 31 March
2021.

11 - 24

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

7.

HARROGATE DISTRICT COMMUNITY RECOVERY PLAN FOR
COVID-19:
To present the updated Community recovery plan – copy attached.
The Director of Corporate Affairs to be in attendance.

25 - 58

8.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21:
The Improvement & Development Manager to submit a written report.

59 - 104

9.

FORWARD PLAN ITEMS OF KEY DECISIONS:
To consider the current Forward Plan items.

105 108

SCRUTINY MATTERS AND REVIEWS UNDERTAKEN BY THE
COMMISSION
10.

SCRUTINY UPDATE AND SCRUTINY OF HEALTH
REPRESENTATIVE 2021/22:
The Scrutiny, Governance and Risk Manager to submit a written
report.

109 112

MEMBERSHIP: Councillor Chris Aldred (Chair). Councillor Sam Gibbs, Councillor
Bernard Bateman, MBE, Councillor Michael Harrison, Councillor Sue Lumby,
Councillor John Mann, Councillor Pat Marsh, Councillor Stuart Martin, MBE,
Councillor Nigel Middlemass, Councillor Norman Waller, Councillor Tom Watson
and Councillor Robert Windass.
Members are reminded that in order to expedite business at the meeting and
enable Officers to adapt their presentations to address areas causing difficulty,
they are encouraged to contact Officers prior to the meeting with questions on
technical issues in reports.
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those
items taken in open session.
The agenda papers may be examined at the Civic Centre, Harrogate and a copy
may be purchased for £6.00.
Please contact Democratic Services, at the Civic Centre, if you have any queries
or need further information on this agenda - telephone or email Tel: 01423
500600 Email: democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk
Members of the public or press are entitled to record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog)
this meeting. Any recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in
accordance with the Council’s protocol on recording and reporting of public
meetings. We request that any member of the public or press intending on
recording the meeting notify Democratic Services at the earliest opportunity so that
any reasonable adaptions can be made. Where we have received prior notification
of the intention to record a meeting the Chair will make an announcement at the
start of the meeting and give any direction needed.
Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES FOR MEETINGS – FIRE: On hearing the fire
evacuation alarm, you should leave the building by the nearest safe fire exit. Once
outside the building, please assemble in the corner of the visitor car park at the
front of the building opposite the main entrance. Persons should not re-enter the
building until authorised to do so by the Fire and Rescue Service or the
Emergency Co-ordinator.

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION
HELD ON MONDAY, 12 APRIL 2021
(FROM 5.30 PM – 7.22 PM)
PRESENT: Councillor Chris Aldred in the Chair. Councillor Sam Gibbs, Councillor
Nick Brown, Councillor Michael Harrison, Councillor Sue Lumby, Councillor John
Mann, Councillor Pat Marsh, Councillor Nigel Middlemass, Councillor Victoria
Oldham, Councillor Tom Watson and Councillor Robert Windass.
In Attendance:

Cabinet Member for Housing and Safer Communities,
Councillor Mike Chambers

Late Arrivals:

None

Early Departures:

Councillor Nick Brown at 7.10 pm
Councillor Robert Windass at 7.10 pm

74/20 – APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES:
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Norman Waller. Councillor
Victoria Oldham was acting as a substitute for Councillor Bernard Bateman.
(5.34 pm)
75/20 – DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: There were no declarations of interest
made at the meeting.
(5.35 pm)
76/20 – MINUTES: The Minutes of the meetings of the Commission held on 18
January 2021 and 1 February 2021 were approved as a correct record.
(Ten Members voted for the motion and there was one abstention)
(5.35 pm – 5.37 pm)
77/20 – EXEMPT INFORMATION: There was no exempt information.
(5.39 pm)
78/20 – PUBLIC ARRANGEMENTS- QUESTIONS: There were no public questions.
(5.39 pm)
79/20 – FEEDBACK FROM CABINET HELD ON 3 FEBRUARY 2021:
The Scrutiny, Governance and Risk Manager submitted a written report that
provided formal feedback to the Commission on items considered by Cabinet on 3
February that related to Overview and Scrutiny Commission referrals. The Chair
explained that this was the first opportunity to provide this feedback due to the
cancellation of a meeting in March.
The Commission had referred comments relating to three items, these were:

Page 5

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION
1. Consideration of 2021/22 Draft Budget and 2022/23 Indicative Budget and Draft
Housing Revenue Account Budget 2021/22 – Overview and Scrutiny Response
2. 2020/21 January Financial & Service Plan Performance Update
3. Corporate Performance Report, Quarter 3 2020/21
The Chair explained that he had attended Cabinet to present comments on behalf of
the Commission and one of the outcomes was that the Cabinet Member for Housing
and Safer Communities had been invited to attend a future Overview and Scrutiny
Commission meeting to discuss housing matters, this was at Minute 80/20.
The Commission had made comments about salary savings during the scrutiny of
the budget. The process had provided assurances to the Commission that, whilst
there had been significant salary savings in the 2020/21 year which had helped to
offset the costs associated with the pandemic, the budget for future years allowed for
vacancies to be filled once services returned to normal. Councillor Pat Marsh
requested that all Members be informed about senior management roles that were
vacated or filled. It was agreed that this matter would be referred to Management
Board.
(5.39 pm – 5.46 pm)
80/20 – HOUSING MATTERS:
The Chair explained that the review of quarter three performance information by the
Commission at their meeting on 1 February 2021 had raised some queries relating
the housing function at Harrogate Borough Council (HBC). He welcomed to the
meeting the Cabinet Member for Housing and Safer Communities, Councillor Mike
Chambers, and the Head of Housing.
Councillor Chambers stated that whilst the housing department performed well there
was not room for complacency, especially regarding achieving energy efficiency and
net zero carbon goals. He referred to the areas the Commission had asked for more
details on. These were:
-

Energy efficiency/environmental initiatives
Longer term support for those leaving temporary accommodation
The delivery of affordable homes in the district

There were around 3,900 properties within the Housing Portfolio. All council and
housing association properties had to meet the Decent Homes standard, which was
higher than the standard private landlords had to meet. There were forthcoming
changes to the housing health and safety rating system, but specifications had not
yet been confirmed. This was a factor in terms of the approach to enhancing existing
properties. To ensure that all requirements would be met, the majority of planned
improvement work would be considered fully when the government had confirmed
specifications.
Councillor Chambers introduced the Head of Housing and Property who delivered a
presentation with information on the areas identified by the Commission. It explained
the range of actions taken by the service over the last year and outlined future plans.
2

Page 6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION

As the Housing Authority the rent-roll was over £16.3 million each year. The income
management team had worked with tenants over the difficult COVID-19 period to
ensure that tenancies were secure and could be maintained. Rent arrears were
currently the lowest since before 2015/16.
There were currently around 1700 households on the housing waiting list and
approximately 600 allocations (within HBC stock) and nominations (to partner
housing associations) were made each year. There were very high levels (99.4%) of
customer satisfaction with the housing repairs service.
HBC also did a lot of work with disabled owner occupiers and private tenants which
allowed people to remain safe and independent within their own homes. This
included £755k spent on adaptations in 2020/21.
The Commission were informed about the energy efficiency of council housing stock,
which was graded from A – G under the government’s Standard Assessment
Procedure rating system for home energy. Most of the properties were in bands C
and D. There would be improvements which were outlined in the zero carbon
housing roadmap. Stage one of this involved defining the goals in terms of new build
and retrofitting, developing a long-term plan and budgeting. Stage two would involve
a full survey examining the stock condition of each property and pilot architypes to
allow for detailed budgeting. Stage three was the roll out.
The Head of Housing and Property outlined the funding programmes available to
improve energy efficiency in the private sector. These were two funding schemes
known as LAD1B and LAD2 that were co-ordinated by York City Council. It was
reported that this was a successful long-standing arrangement and dedicated
officers worked across multiple local authority areas to distribute funding. Harrogate
Borough Council also operated a prevention grant, up to £15k was available for
owner occupiers, the first £5k of this was not means tested. This funding could be
used for a wide range of improvements to make homes warm, dry and energy
efficient.
The Commission heard about the range and scope of services that supported those
who were homeless or at risk of homelessness. The funding and associated staff
resource were explained. This included a multi-agency approach with involvement
from HBCs community safety hub. HBC had just opened new accommodation on
Spa Lane, this provided high quality supported, independent living services for 19
single people who were homeless or facing homelessness. The Commission were
shown a video explaining the specifications of the new accommodation. A holistic
approach to supporting the complex needs of individuals would be taken. It was
anticipated that the facilities and professional support available to those accessing
the accommodation would develop valuable skills for independent living. The video
was available on the HBC YouTube account.
Information on the delivery of affordable homes in the district was provided, in the
2020/21 year 365 new affordable homes were made available which included 52
new council homes. Details were provided about rent capping to make rents more
affordable. For new affordable homes rents were set at 80% of the regular market
3

Page 7

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION
price, this was further reduced as rents were then capped at Housing Benefit level
which would mean that housing costs would be covered in full for so those who were
eligible to receive Housing Benefit. The Commission heard that there had been a
25% reduction in long term empty properties since 2019. Affordable housing could
also be delivered by Community Led Housing Groups. There were two groups based
in Harrogate (Housing Our Community and Harrogate Affordable Homes) as well as
groups in Masham and Knaresborough. These groups were given first refusal for
purchase and development of an empty home acquired by the council.
The Commission thanked the Head of Housing and Property for the detailed
presentation, it was agreed to circulate a copy of the slides to Commission
Members.
In response to questions from Members about the housing waiting list it was
confirmed that the allocation scheme was published on the HBC website and it was
agreed that this information would be circulated to Members.
Councillor Marsh asked about the installation of gas boilers in council houses and
the Cabinet Member for Housing and Safer Communities explained that the council
had dedicated staff resources into looking at viable alternatives to gas, such as
ground source heat pumps. Where no alternative to gas was available the highest
energy rated products were used.
The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member and the Head of Housing and Property for
their attendance which had addressed all the areas the Commission had requested
further information on.
(5.46 pm – 6.59 pm)
81/20 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS:
The Chair explained that a number of Key Decisions that had been taken at Cabinet
on 31 March 2021 were in the call-in period, which ended on 13 April 2021.
Councillors considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions document that was
submitted and considered at each Overview and Scrutiny Commission meeting. The
Scrutiny, Governance and Risk Manager confirmed that this was a summary
document listing all the Key Decisions for the year (from May 2020 to May 2021).
Members considered that it could be useful to include a version where only future
decisions that had not yet been taken were listed.
(7.11 pm - 7.20 pm)
82/20 – FEEDBACK FROM OTHER COMMITTEES AND EXTERNAL BODIES:
Councillor Nick Brown was the Chair of the Commission’s UCI Task and Finish
Group and he provided an update on the progress of the Group.
The Group had received a lot of information and was grateful to the officers involved
for their time and support with this. The Group had covered all aspects of the event
itself. This included pre-event decisions and planning, the organisation and delivery
of the event itself and the different roles and responsibilities of various agencies and
parallel cultural activities including community grants.
4

Page 8

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION

An area of the review that was outstanding was a consultation exercise and a survey
had been developed by Members. This would be shared with residents, local
businesses and the voluntary sector in the near future. Members of the group were
keen to seek the views of retail businesses and potentially the emergency services,
and health and social care professionals.
Councillor Brown confirmed the Group would aim to report back to the Commission
by late Summer 2021.
Councillor Nigel Middlemass was the Commission’s representative on the North
Yorkshire Scrutiny of Health Committee. He provided the following update following
a meeting of this Committee on 12 March 2021.
-

-

-

COVID-19 vaccinations: the distribution of these was above government
targets and it had been anticipated that the whole programme would be
completed by July.
Patient services: hospitals in North Yorkshire were operating full outpatient
services including treatments for cancer. GPs in the district would continue to
use telephone and video appointments in some cases but around two thirds of
appointments were face to face.
Emergency treatment: local people should be reassured that it was safe to
attend hospitals if they needed to. There were rigorous COVID secure
procedures in place to prevent the spread of the virus as much as possible.
(6.59 pm – 7.10 pm)

83/20 – FUTURE MEETING DATES:
The Chair confirmed the next meeting of the Commission was on the 10 May 2021.
Updates on the Community and Economic COVID-19 recovery plans would be the
main items for consideration at this meeting. These updates related to the agreed
focus for the Commission for the year 2020/21 Civic year, which was the response
and recovery to COVID-19.
The Chair explained that he had agreed an alteration to the meeting dates in
January 2022, and the calendar of meetings on the Harrogate Borough Council
website had been updated to reflect the agreed change. The change meant the date
of a possible meeting had been moved and confirmed with the subsequent meeting
cancelled. This change had been made to allow the Commission to consider
Financial, Service Plan and Corporate Performance reports before they were
considered by Cabinet on 2 February 2022 and therefore comments or
recommendations from the Commission could be referred on an exception basis.
(7.20 pm – 7.22 pm)

5

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item No. 06

REPORT TO:

CABINET

DATE:

31 March 2021

SERVICE AREAS:

Culture, Tourism & Sport
Destination Marketing
Place-Shaping & Economic Growth

REPORTING OFFICER:

DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY & CULTURE
(Trevor Watson)

SUBJECT:

COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY FRAMEWORK &
ACTION PLAN – Update & Priorities for 2021/22

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL DISTRICT

FORWARD PLAN REF:

N/A

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is twofold:
(1) to provide a general update on ongoing and planned future work to
support businesses and the local economy via the Council’s Covid-19
Economic Recovery Framework & Action Plan; and
(2) to recommend a number of specific priorities for events and use of
outdoor space to proactively support the local economy as its opens up from
lockdown over the months ahead

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1) note the two updates made to the Economic Recovery Framework
(as set out in section 5.1 and at Appendix A) and the specific activity
undertaken and planned to support businesses and the safe reopening of the high street (as set out in section 5.2-5.3)
2) endorse the priorities identified in sections 5.4-5.6 of the report in
relation to proactive events and use of outdoor space to support the
local economy

Page 11

1

3) approve the provision of £75,000 funding from the Council’s Major
Events Reserve to support the delivery of additional event activity
during the latter half of 2021
3.0

RECOMMENDED REASON/S FOR DECISION/S
The Council’s Economic Recovery Framework & Action Plan are ‘live’
documents which recognise the need to adapt and work in new ways to support
the local economy/businesses throughout and beyond the Covid-19 pandemic.
It is important that the Council continue to play a proactive role in supporting
the local economy in the coming months as lockdown is eased and the district
starts to re-open for business. Supporting businesses, maximising the safe use
of public space and a proactive approach to Covid-safe events are all key parts
of this.

4.0

ALTERNATIVE OPTION/S CONSIDERED AND RECOMMENDED FOR
REJECTION
Not to endorse/support the priorities for economic recovery set out in the
report. This option is recommended for rejection because the Council has a
critical role to play in economic recovery activity over the coming months
and the local economy/businesses would be adversely affected if the
Council failed to adopt a proactive approach.
Not to agree the funding to support delivery of the proactive events outlined
in the report. This option is recommended for rejection because a proactive
and safe approach to events will help support the local economy at a time
when it is needed

5.0

THE REPORT

5.1

Context
In July 2020 the Council adopted a Covid-19 Economic Recovery
Framework and Action Plan, recognising that this recovery would be an
ongoing process (survive > recover > thrive) requiring different responses
and actions over a period of time. The Framework/Action Plan is based
around four themes which represent key strands of economic recovery,
namely:
(1) Business & Innovation
(2) Place & infrastructure
(3) People & community
(4) Environment & land use
The Framework (‘plan on a page’) is attached as Appendix A. This
includes two minor updates to the document, namely:
(1) Delivery timescales in the document have been updated to reflect that
the national and local economy still remains in the ‘survive’ phase, as a
result of extended national lockdowns throughout 2020.

Page 12

2

(2) An additional action area has been added under the ‘Place and
Infrastructure’ theme to highlight the importance of events in supporting the
local economy over the coming months and in the longer term.
In terms of progress to date against the Framework/Action Plan, Appendix
B provides a visual summary of outcomes up to the end of Quarter 3 (31
December 2020). The year-end outcome report for 2020/21 (to 31 March
2021) will be published in May 2021.
Key headlines up to end of Quarter 3 included:-

Over 4,700 downloads of our Business Toolkit helping shops and
businesses re-open safely
Over 900 business enquiries responded to by our Economy and
Transport team
80 businesses supported via our one to one ‘Reopening the High
Street Safely’ business support scheme
1100 Proactive Covid-19 Compliance advice checks responded to by
our Environmental Health team
Business support features in Residents and Business e-newsletters
with a reach of 45,000 and social media reaching 40,858 on
Facebook, and 14,246 Twitter Impressions

With a clear Government plan now in place to gradually ease lockdown
restrictions (alongside a proactive vaccination programme), it is hoped that
we can start to move towards the all-important ‘recovery’ phase of the
Framework/Action Plan over the Summer 2021 period.
In preparation for this, the Economic Recovery Project Team have identified
a number of specific work areas for prioritisation in the coming months particularly in relation to the ‘Business & Innovation and ‘Place and
Infrastructure’ themes of the economic recovery framework. These priorities
are:
-

Support for businesses
Reopening the High Street Safely
Maximising the economic use of outdoor spaces
A proactive approach to (Covid-19 safe) events

The detail of these priorities is set out in the sections below:
5.2

Support for Businesses
Since the initial lockdown in March 2020, support for businesses has been a
top priority for the Council – as set out in the ‘Business & Innovation’ section
of the action plan and in previous recovery updates to Cabinet.
Since March 2020 the Council has paid out
£76.7m worth of Covid business support grants across 10 grant schemes to
9862 recipients (as of 23 March 2021). These numbers will rise as there are
still grants being assessed.

Page 13

3

In addition, in the March 2021 Budget the Chancellor announced additional
grants of up to £18,000 for pubs, restaurants, shops, hotels, gyms and
hairdressers and an additional discretionary element of grant funding.
Detailed guidance about this funding was received by the Council on 22
March 2021. As with previous rounds of grant funding there are conditions
that need to be adhered to and in the case of the discretionary element
(Additional Restriction Grant) it will only be available to councils once all
previous Additional Restriction Grant money has been paid out. The Council
will continue to place high priority on ensuring that grant funding is paid out
to eligible businesses as quickly as possible.
In addition to the grants, the Council has also funded a business support
initiative which gives Harrogate district businesses ‘free’ access to the
‘Maybe Tech’ platform (www.maybetech.com) for 12 months (worth
upwards of £35 per month). This enables them to access a comprehensive
programme of training and support and use of proactive social media tools
to engage customers, reach new audiences and empower teams to make
more sales. Local case studies for the initiative will be developed and
promoted in the coming weeks to encourage more businesses to get
involved.
5.3

Re-opening the High Street Safely
Since the initial easing of the first lockdown in Summer 2020, re-opening the
high street safely has been a key priority for the Council – as set out in the
‘Place & Infrastructure’ section of the recovery action plan and previous
recovery updates to Cabinet.
The Government awarded Harrogate Borough Council c. £141k of
Reopening the High Street Safely (RHSS) funding in June 2020. Since that
time we have carried out a number of initiatives using the fund to support
the safe reopening of the high street / town centre at the appropriate times.
This proactive work will continue in the coming weeks/months as our high
streets/town centres once again gear up to re-open over the coming
weeks/months, including:


A further proactive phase of our #shopsafeshoplocal campaign to
encourage people to shop local and in a safe covid compliant way,
this includes; bollard covers, lamp post flags, radio adverts,
newspaper averts, social media campaigns, posters and parking
restriction planter wraps.



Extension of our high street / town centre business support service
that is helping businesses become more resilient and adapt to the
Covid restrictions. To date over 80 businesses have received support
and advice.



Launch of a digital “London Tube style” Harrogate and
Knaresborough cycle map; ‘Buy Local, By Bike’, that encourages
people to cycle to do their shopping locally

Page 14

4



Enhanced cleaning services at the Council-owned Public
Conveniences in main visitor locations and across all the district’s
towns during key holiday periods (2nd April – 5th April, 1st May – 3rd
May, 29th May – 31st May and 27th July – 6th September 2021).
This will be delivered through the employment of short-term agency
cleaners by way of proactively dealing with an anticipated increase in
‘staycation’ visitor numbers/increased use of the facilities within the
district across the Spring/Summer period.

Welcome Back Fund (April 2021-March 2022)
On 22 March 2021 the Government also confirmed their intention to allocate
a further tranche of funding to all Local Authorities, as part of a national
‘Welcome Back Fund’. This is essentially a 100% ‘top-up’ to the original
RHSS funding, thereby allocating a further c. £141k to Harrogate Borough
Council. As with the original RHSS grant, the new money is also funded via
the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and will therefore come
with strict criteria and specific requirements for how funding can be spent.
The funding will run until 31 March 2022 and includes two additional criteria
in addition to the four listed in the original RHSS scheme, namely
- Support and promote a safe public environment for a local area’s visitor
economy; and
- Allow local areas to develop plans for responding to the medium-term
impact of CV-19 including trialling new ideas particularly where these relate
to the High Street.
Detailed guidance on the scheme is expected in the coming weeks.
5.4

Maximising the economic use of outdoor spaces
Use of Outdoor Space:
An ‘Outdoor Spaces Group’ was created last year to coordinate recovery
action planning and support the re-opening of town and city centres across
the Harrogate district following lockdown. This group has now reconvened
to play the same proactive role as we move out of the latest lockdown via
the Governments ‘Road Map’.
This will be of particular importance from 12 April 2021 when it is expected
that the hospitality industry will be able to serve food and drink ONLY in the
outdoors until the next stage is reached.
The Business Planning Act was passed in 2020 granting powers to HBC to
issue pavement licences via a streamlined process allowing businesses to
occupy outdoor spaces creating additional trading capacity. The
Government have asked local authorities to be proactive and supportive in
their granting of permission to use these spaces and to enable outdoor
areas to be utilised in this way.

Page 15

5

Early indications are that the Business Planning legislation will be extended
beyond 2021 and the Council is being asked to continue its flexible
approach to the use of outdoor spaces throughout 2021.
Recognising the special status of the Stray and it being a key outdoor space
which must be managed in accordance with the provisions of the Stray Act
1985, consideration is being given as to whether it is possible to use limited
parts of the Stray in the summer months where, due to the location,
pavement licences or alternative locations are not logistically possible. Any
consideration would be predicated on obligations being in place to protect
the Stray.
To support any decision being taken on this matter, the intention is to
conduct a consultation exercise to ascertain the extent of interest in using
the Stray for this purpose and any potential views on this locally. The
consultation will include seeking the views of key stakeholders, along with
local businesses. We are currently awaiting feedback from the Duchy on
the proposed approach, prior to starting the consultation.
We are asking Cabinet to endorse the following actions









5.5

To support the use of open space in the reopening of the hospitality
sector, via the issuing of pavement licences
To support the proposed consultation on limited use of the Stray
Land as part of our Town Centre recovery work, subject to feedback
from the Duchy
To help businesses take full advantage of the flexibilities of their
alcohol licences and any relaxations created to assist recovery.
To continue working with NYCC in implementing road closures to
create additional hospitality space or safe pedestrianised zones in
order to maintain social distancing and a safe retail environment.
To issue proactive planning advice to help support businesses who
wish to open or improve an outdoor seating area, re-use an existing
area or vary their opening hours.
To continue to facilitate the suspension of parking spaces in key
areas creating additional space for pedestrians to maintain social
distancing.

Events as a vehicle for economic recovery
The positive economic impact of major events is well documented and the
loss of event activity over the past 12 months has demonstrated the depth
and breadth of the impact.
If the roadmap out of lockdown progresses as planned, Harrogate District
will see events returning from mid-May onwards.
A number of key Harrogate District events have confirmed that they will take
place over the summer, including the Great Yorkshire Show, Theakstons
Crime Writing Festival and a number of trade events at Harrogate

Page 16

6

Convention Centre. In addition there is a full calendar of events taking place
on the Stray, Valley Gardens and other council land.
Although a busy summer is anticipated immediately following the main lifting
of COVID restrictions planned for 21 June, additional event activity will
support in attracting a larger share of the staycation audience and further
benefit those businesses in the visitor economy that have been hardest hit
by the lockdowns. This will be particularly important in the shoulder season
once the school summer holidays are over.
In addition to the existing calendar of local events, HBC will support the
following:


Harrogate Carnival 2021 - 4/5 September 2021 (TBC)

This event will be organised, managed and produced by Harrogate
International Festivals (HIF).
Harrogate Borough Council will provide direct grant of £50,000 from the
Major Events budget to HIF, plus potential support activity in kind (e.g. litter
picking).
There will be a one day lively and innovative celebration event building on
the success of the 2019 delivery as part of the UCI cultural celebrations.
The event will feature spectacle, street theatre, music and arts stages,
workshops and food zones ensuring a creative and enticing event to drive
footfall within the town, both from the local community and to create an
enhanced tourism offer for visitors.
Currently this event is not anticipated to include a Parade in the same way it
did in 2019. This is due to current advice and guidance from large scale city
projects including Birmingham 2022 and Festival UK 22, which is the
avoidance of parades as crowds are more challenging to manage at the
roadside. Although this guidance is being regularly updated, HIF will need to
consider the safety element, and both reality and perception and the costs
of producing the parade vs a full day of delivery across multiple zones.
Elements of a ‘Parade’ could potentially be included within static areas
avoiding the need for costly road closures and managing moving multiple
sites, however this needs to be explored further.


Fire Garden 2021 – October/November 2021 (or February 2022)

This event will be organised, managed and produced by HIF.
Harrogate Borough Council will provide direct grant of £25,000 from the
Major Events budget to HIF, plus potential support activity in kind.
A 2-3 day evening Fire Garden event based on the success and outputs of
the 2016 Cie Carabosse event in the Valley Gardens which was designed to
celebrate the 50th Anniversary of HIF, attracting 25,000 people to the
Harrogate across three evenings.

Page 17

7

The programme will consist of fire shows, sculptures and installations on a
grand scale using flickering art works. The fire gardens need
twilight/darkness to create the most stunning effects and the early sunset at
this time of year will allow families to attend the event.
It is proposed that the event will take place in October/November 2021 or
February 2022 subject to government restrictions and guidance
In addition to the specific grant funding referenced above, other event
related activity to note will include:

5.6



Marketing support for the Harrogate BID’s planned series of
weekend events through Visit Harrogate’s website and social media
channels.



A review of Christmas in Harrogate District: To support in the
attraction of visitors outside of the peak summer months, a review of
the District’s Christmas offering will be conducted in order to
maximise visitor expenditure and economic impact.

Event management resource
It is proposed that a new Events Bureau Manager post be created within the
new Destination Management Organisation (DMO) subject to necessary
budget approval.
This post will be critical in the delivery of the event related actions detailed
within the Economic Recovery programme, and in the long term will form an
integral part of the DMO’s ambitions for positioning Harrogate District as an
exceptional events destination. The role will lead on the attraction of new
business and leisure events to the Harrogate District, and oversee the
delivery of Harrogate Borough Council’s Event Strategy.

6.0

REQUIRED ASSESSMENTS AND IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following were considered: Financial Implications; Human Resources
Implications; Legal Implications; ICT Implications; Strategic Property/Asset
Management Considerations; Risk Assessment; Equality and Diversity (the
Public Sector Equality Duty and impact upon people with protected
characteristics). If applicable, the outcomes of any consultations,
assessments, considerations and implications considered necessary during
preparation of this report are detailed below.

6.2

Financial implications – there is £75k available within the Major Events
Reserve to fund the events detailed at paragraph 5.5.

6.3

Legal Services have been consulted and their comments have been
incorporated in to the report.

7.0

CONCLUSIONS

7.1

The Council’s Economic Recovery Framework & Action Plan are ‘live’
documents which recognise the need to adapt and work in new ways to support

Page 18

8

the local economy/businesses throughout and beyond the Covid-19 pandemic.
It is important that the Council continue to play a proactive role in supporting
the local economy in the coming months as lockdown is eased and the district
starts to re-open for business. Supporting businesses, maximising the safe use
of public space and a proactive approach to Covid-safe events are all key parts
of this, and Cabinet are therefore recommended to endorse the priorities
identified in this report.

Background Papers – Various Covid-19 update reports at Cabinet meetings
throughout 2020

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact the following officers if you require any
further information on the contents of this report:
Gemma Rio (For ‘Events’) gemma.rio@visitharrogate.co.uk
John McGivern (For ‘Use of Outdoor Space’) john.mcgivern@harrogate.gov.uk
Kathryn Daly (For ‘Support for Businesses’/’Re-opening the High Street Safely’)
Kathryn.daly@harrogate.gov.uk
The officers can be contacted via the above email addresses, at Harrogate
Borough Council, PO Bo 787, Harrogate, HG1 9R or by telephone on 01423
500600

Page 19

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Covid-19 Economic Recovery Framework
This is where we are focusing our efforts to support the local economy, working with others to ensure the Harrogate district survives, recovers and thrives in a sustainable way.
SURVIVE (April 2020-June 2021)

RECOVER (July 2021 - March 2022)

THRIVE (April 2022 onwards)

PRIORITY AREAS OF FOCUS
BUSINESS
&
INNOVATION

Help businesses access the support and funding that they need to survive

Help businesses access the support and funding that they need to grow

Deliver up-to-date Covid-19 information, guidance and advice to aid business survival and
recovery

Deliver up-to-date business support information, guidance and advice to aid
business growth

Support local businesses to stay open/re-open safely and responsibly

Support businesses in priority sectors to grow and create jobs

Work with businesses who are re-structuring their workforce, including making
redundancies, due to the economic impact of COVID 19.

Work with businesses to ensure that they can access the people and skills that
they need to grow and succeed

Encourage our 13,000 businesses and 165,000 residents to “Think Harrogate” as a way to
kick-start economic recovery

Encourage workers, investors and businesses outside the district to “Think
Harrogate” as a fantastic place to work, invest and do business

Direct support for HBC commercial tenants

Invest in Council-owned commercial premises to support business growth

PRIORITY AREAS OF FOCUS

Page 21

PLACE
&
INFRASTRUCTURE

Make sure that all our town centres are clean, safe and accessible for businesses, workers
and customers

Reshape our town centres to make them sustainable, safe and welcoming spaces
where people want to meet and spend time

Encourage people to use our public spaces in a safe and responsible way

Maximise the economic use of our public spaces

Work with developers so that they can re-open their sites safely and responsibly

Accelerate the delivery of high quality homes and jobs across the district

Prioritise work on HBC capital projects that will help aid economic recovery

Deliver a range of economic infrastructure projects across Council-owned sites
and buildings to support future economic growth

Encourage residents to stay safe and enjoy the beautiful area that we live in; promote
opportunities to ‘discover what’s on your doorstep’ and ‘holiday at home’

Promote our beautiful district and all its assets as a safe and desirable place to
visit and stay

Support a small number of key events to take place safely in order to attract and encourage
visitor expenditure

Develop a long term Event Strategy to position Harrogate district as an
exceptional events destination

PRIORITY AREAS OF FOCUS
PEOPLE
&
COMMUNITY

Support people who are redeployed, on reduced working hours, made redundant or needing
to retrain or upskill due to the economic impact of COVID 19

Increase the number of higher value, higher skilled jobs
in the Harrogate district to reduce the need for out-commuting

Ensure investment in digital infrastructure continues in order to support people to work and
access services from home where they can

Ensure investment in digital infrastructure continues in order to support new
business models, changing consumer behaviours and digital skills.

PRIORITY AREAS OF FOCUS
ENVIRONMENT
&
LAND USE

Encourage people to keep walking and cycling whenever they can, promoting these as a
sustainable way to travel to work and school

Walking, cycling and public transport become the method of choice for both
shorter, local, trips and journeys to and from further afield.

Promote the positive impacts of lockdown on carbon reduction

Step up our carbon reduction plans

Help residents and businesses to access statutory Council services as quickly and easily as
possible to aid economic recovery

Deliver a proactive, ‘open for business’ approach for all our statutory services

For more information and to view the Economic Recovery Action Plan please visit www.harrogate.gov.uk/economicgrowthstrategy

Harrogate
BOROUGH COUNCIL

This page is intentionally left blank

Economic Recovery outputs/outcomes Q3 – October to Decemember 2020
Harrogate Borough Council continue to strengthen the road to recovery for businesses in the district

Business and innovation

85 businesses benefiting from a three month

£53,085,986 paid out in business support
grants* across 5883 successful grant applications by

local businesses. (Business Rates Grant; Discretionary
Business Grant; Small Business Grant; Local Restrictions
Grant suite; Additional Restrictions Grant and Christmas
Support Payment) *as 07 January 2021.

rent free period equating to £197,000. Currently
working with businesses on an individual basis to
agree personalised forms of assistance.

#ShopLocalShopSafe campaign continues district

wide to support recovery including film production
showcasing safe shopping on our high streets, Local radio
adverts and printed media.; bollard covers, lamppost banners
and parking bay planter barriers were also deployed. Articles
featured in Residents and Business e-newsletters with a
reach of 45,000 and social media reaching 40,858 on
Facebook, and 14,246 Twitter Impressions.

24 editions of our business e-newsletter*
issued, providing information, advice and
support in the region of 3,200 subscribers.
*as end December 2020.

917 business enquiries responded to by our Economy

4,738 Business Toolkit downloads helping

shops and businesses re-open safely. 'Operating
your business safely' can now be found on the
business and investment homepage.

and Transport team from the business@harrogate
email. 80 businesses supported via our one to one

Page 23

RHSS business support scheme. 20 SME's supported in
peer to peer resilience and recovery forums.

1100 Proactive Covid-19 Compliance advice checks
responded to by Environmental Health. 61 Covid-19 outbreaks
investigated with NYCC Public Health team. 52 planned events

– giving Covid advice and guidance reviewing risk assessments.

Maybe* a social media insight platform has been

contracted to offer businesses within district access a free
account. It is designed to help small businesses maximise
their social media impact to attract, retain and grow their
customer numbers even during periods of lockdown when
their shops are closed. Maybe* offers suite of tools and
training resources.

100 letters sent out to business premises with large
private water supplies e.g. caravan sites giving advice
on safe water use and Legionella on reopening.

Reported figures are cumulative totals for 20/21

17 hand

sanitising
stations
deployed to

date across the
district in line with
government
guidelines.

Place and
infrastructure

Working partnerships with the
Outdoor Spaces Group are:

20 requests
from businesses
for additional
outdoor space.*
A total of 16 Pavement
Licences have been
approved. Agreement with
NYCC to extend the Ginnel
road closure, and parking
bay suspension on James
and Albert Street beyond
31 Oct 2020 until end
January 2021 to support
increased space for safe
shopping social distancing.

Harrogate Borough Council, North Yorkshire
County Council, Harrogate Business
Improvement District, Ripon Business
Improvement District, Knaresborough Town
Council and chamber of trade, Individual
Businesses

31 responses received
to the HBC Developer/
Agent survey to help us

better understand the
impact of Covid 19 on the
development industry

Social distancing supporting
measures at the following locations
Albert Street – Harrogate
James Street – Harrogate
The Ginnel – Harrogate

For more information and to view the Economic recovery action plan please visit

Environment
and land use

Online application procedure
developed for Pavement
Licences.

Market Place – Knaresborough – Weds only
Castlegate – Knaresborough – Weds only
Waterside – Knaresborough

Air Quality Monitoring measured by
Harrogate Borough Council
As trends forecast, Q3 has seen a return to
normal Nitrogen Dioxide levels across sites
monitored across the district.
The beginning of Q2 showed a
20% reduction in Nitrogen Dioxide
levels when comparing July
39 businesses have received the
2019 results.
LCR Digital Resilience Voucher,
This was a change from
totaling £100,000 awards.
40% reduction
seen in Q1.
9,000 homes ready for service (RFS)
in Harrogate as part of CityFibre roll out.
Next two quarters will see the
build progress into
Knaresborough town and
Ripon city.

People
and community

www.harrogate.gov.uk/economicgrowthstrategy

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item No. 07
REPORT TO:

Overview and Scrutiny Commission

DATE:

10 May 2021

SERVICE AREA:

Legal and Governance

REPORTING OFFICER:

Scrutiny, Governance and Risk Manager
(Mark Codman)

SUBJECT:

Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for
COVID-19

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL DISTRICT

FORWARD PLAN REF:

N/A

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

At the 6 July 2020 Overview & Scrutiny Commission meeting, Members
agreed to focus their work programme for 2020 on the Council’s response
to, and recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.

1.2

The purpose of this report is to present the most recent update of the
Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for COVID-19 to the
Overview and Scrutiny Commission.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Commission considers
the documents that are appended to this report and:
(1) Notes the Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for
COVID-19 , and in particular the significant amount of work
undertaken to date to address the unprecedented challenges of
the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown
(2) Provides any feedback regarding future activity

3.0

THE REPORT

3.1

The Commission has previously considered the Harrogate District
Community Recovery Plan for COVID-19 at its meetings on 6 July 2020,
28 September 2020 and 7 December 2020.


Attached at Appendix A is the latest Harrogate District Community
Recovery Plan for COVID-19.

Page 25



3.2

Attached at Appendix B Action Plan - Harrogate District
Community Recovery Plan for COVID-19.

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Commission considers
the documents appended to this report and:
(1)

Notes the Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for
COVID-19, and in particular the significant amount of work
undertaken to date to address the unprecedented
challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown

(2)

Provides any feedback regarding future activity

4.0

REQUIRED ASSESSMENTS AND IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The following were considered: Financial Implications; Human
Resources Implications; Legal Implications; ICT Implications; Strategic
Property/Asset Management Considerations; Risk Assessment; Equality
and Diversity (the Public Sector Equality Duty and impact upon people
with protected characteristics). If applicable, the outcomes of any
consultations, assessments, considerations and implications considered
necessary during preparation of this report are detailed below.

5.0

CONCLUSIONS

5.1

The purpose of this report is to present the most recent update of the
Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for COVID-19 to the
Overview and Scrutiny Commission.

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Scrutiny, Governance & Risk Manager (Mark
Codman), if you require any further information on the contents of this report. The
officer can be contacted at Legal and Governance, PO Box 787, Harrogate, HG1
9RW or on 01423 500600 (ext. 58595) or by e-mail –
mark.codman@harrogate.gov.uk

Page 26

Harrogate district Community Recovery Plan for
Covid-19

Version control
1.1
1.1
1.2 30th July 2020
1.3 9th September
2020

1.4 17th September

Detail/ amendments
Cabinet- 17th June
Council- 1st July
Amended following comments from CSO’s & stakeholders and
changes to shielding
Amended following residents community response consultation
and updated action plan outcomes
Updated

2020

1.5 22nd October 2020
1.6 15th April 2021

Updated CEV information
Updated following lockdown 3, shielding paused 31st March 21.

1

Page 27

Harrogate District Community Recovery Plan for Covid-19

1.0 Introduction
The Covid19 pandemic came upon us very quickly in March 2020 and has had a significant impact
on our communities and continues to do so. The district will undoubtedly feel the social and
economic impact for years to come. Residents continue to be identified as ‘more at risk’ and
‘vulnerable’ on a daily basis. As guidance and systems continue to develop both locally and
nationally, the recovery needs to come to stabilise our communities and try to get back to a new
“norm” however that looks. The Governments’ road map now sets out a path of recovery with
each milestone determined by the data and capacity within the health system.

What we do know is that the last year has brought new friendships, neighbourliness, compassion,
acts of kindness, increased volunteering and participation and community action. A common
purpose brought people and organisations together with the aim of protecting our residents from
the virus in any way possible. New partnerships have formed, respect and trust has increased
along with collaboration and innovation.

On the flip side the virus has brought anxiety, stress, tensions, loneliness, isolation and exclusion,
financial insecurity and hardship, as well as bereavement and grief for those lost. Inevitably
inequalities within our communities have widened in particular with our more vulnerable residents:
those who are homeless, low income families and individuals, the over 70’s and those with existing
medical conditions. We know that the virus has had a significant impact on the mental health and
wellbeing of many and will continue to do so over the recovery period. Many will find themselves
navigating the benefits system for the first time. For those who have lost loved ones, the
restrictions on gatherings have not allowed for the normal grieving process. The inability to say
good bye in the normal way has caused additional suffering.

2.0 The response across the District
The community response to the panedmic has been outstanding and it shows that the district has
strong networks, neighbourliness and community spirit alongside a vibrant voluntary and
community sector that was fast to mobilise and reach those vulnerable residents who required
support and services.
Instead of setting up new structures and systems the local authorities, Harrogate Borough Council
and North Yorkshire County Council, looked to build on existing community based provisions
creating points of contact within geographical localities for various needs such as food and

2

Page 28

shopping, prescription services and other support requirements. This allowed the councils to focus
on the more vulnerable individuals across the district, deliver response provisions prescribed by
local and national guidance and adapt existing service provision to the situation. Community
organisations built on their local knowledge and networks and reacted and responded quickly
drawing in other community connectors and assets to assist. This included faith groups, member
groups, mutual aid groups that set up as part of the response and community groups that already
existed and had an active presence already albeit covering smaller geographies. All up-scaled
their volunteer bases and reached wider ensuring that no one is left unaided.
The six Community Support Organisations (CSO’s) covering our town localities that have been
grant funded were appointed to act as single points of contact have been a particular strength to
the community response. Their profiles as local community hubs championed and driven by local
people who care about their residents needs has been exemplar throughout. The CSO’s ability to
pull together hundreds of volunteers to provide essential food and prescription services alongside
other welfare and support requests should be acknowledged and applauded. More recently they
have stepped up to assist and support the running of the local vaccination centres and ensuring
our most vulnerable could physically get to their appointment to be immunised. They have
operated in a flexible manner adapting to the circumstances but always safeguarding the needs
of the residents and their volunteers.

Strong, collaborative partnership working between Councils, public sector partners and the
voluntary and community sector has helped problem solving, action, sharing of resources and
skills and meeting the needs of local communities. This includes providing information on advice
and support available across the district as well as emergency food provision, support to
volunteers to enable them to respond appropriately and ensuring no one was homeless.

3.0 The situation we were faced with
The Harrogate district has 27,550 residents (17.5% of the total population) over the age of 70
years, these residents were asked to go into isolation immediately (ONS Mid-2018 Population
Estimates).

In addition a number of residents were identified as being clinically vulnerable and advised to
shield. The Harrogate district had one of the largest proportion of residents across North Yorkshire
within this cohort. As of mid-June 2020 the combined figure shielding residents in the Harrogate
district was 6289 (15.06.20) with new additions still being added on a weekly basis. Not all those
identified requested assistance and 4801 residents said that they didn’t need help and were being
cared for by friends and family.

3

Page 29

649 residents were registered for the central government foodbox provision (15.06.20).
On average 1500 welfare calls a week were being made to the shielded cohort in the first lockdown
and just under 4,000 calls were made in the third lockdown period from a team of redeployed
Harrogate Borough Council staff to check that they are ok and their support requirements havent
changed. Other services both internally and externally were also supporting residents that were
either existing customers, identified as vulnerable or those who had reached out for assistance.
Many of these fell out of the ‘clinically extremenly vulnerable’ definition but were just as vulnerable
as those that did.
There has now been 3 national lockdown periods, with two being for significant periods of time
and clinically extremely vulnerable residents advised to shield for these. As local support systems
have become embeded over the last year these periods saw seamless support provision react
and meet the demands. Residents were not only contacted through national health systems but
they also received local information as to how to get support through various communication
channels with the hope that it reached those that needed it. The local information often reached
the residents prior to the national information which gave residents the reassurance that there
was support available to them should they need it. As the months passed by many residents built
their own resilience structures around them so when new restrictions came into place such as in
January 2021 there was less of a challenge as things like getting shopping or prescriptions were
already sorted. This was also the case for suppliers as they adapted throughout the year to meet
demands and new ways of accessing their provisions.
The Clinical Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) (shielding) list will remain as an active database and
should there be a future local lockdown required those on the list would be contacted and
advised whether they should shield again.

There were 29 individuals who needed to be housed as part of the ‘Everyone In’ scheme during
the first lockdown period as a result of rough sleeping, losing shared accommodation or prevention
from eviction. Work continues to support these individuals and the new residents who have
become homeless due to a change in their circumstances over the last year with support pathways
in place.
In 2020 there were 28,666 children and young people aged 4-18 years old who could be in
education across the Harrogate district with a majority at home as part of lockdown 1 and 3 (ONS
2019). In September 2020 and again in March 2021 schools transitioned students back cautiously

with distancing, face coverings and testing rolled out in high schools.

4

Page 30

4.0 Key themes/ issues arising
The North Yorkshire Resilience Recovery Group have identified some key priorities that they feel
impact on all communities across North Yorkshire and are held within their Humanitarian/
community recovery plan.


Increased poverty or personal debt as a result of unemployment or business failure



Bereavement and opportunities for remembering those who have died.



Maximising potential opportunities from the pandemic-related increase in volunteering and
community action, including how this can be encouraged and supported into the future.



Voluntary and community organisations suffering a loss of income or changed circumstances
due to the lockdown.

Several North Yorkshire wide task groups have been established to consider the themes and they
have been included within local recovery plans.
Alongside these key priorities a number of emerging priorities have been identified from within
the Harrogate district, these are not exhaustive however as the situation and conditions we are
working within change on a daily/weekly basis. These emerging priorities have been identified
through feedback from partners providing the community response including the six community
support organisations, community food providers, public service providers and from residents
themselves through the various interactions had with those ringing for assistance or those who
have had welfare checks whilst shielding and in isolation.

The emerging priorities identified are:
1.0 Planning and intelligence gathering

2.0 Support for our residents

3.0 Community tensions

4.0 Support for the voluntary and community sector

5.0 Bereavement and opportunties for remembering those who have died.

5

Page 31

We appreciate that many of the priorities are interlinked and do not occur in isolation and there
is a need to not just address the issue that has come to the forefront. For example alongside
financial poverty there will inevitably be food and fuel poverty and potentially homelessness.
This then impacts on an individuals mental health and wellbeing. The Warm & Well North
Yorkshire project has recently reported that individuals getting in touch with one specific issue
actually need up to seven different interventions from the initial contact query.

Appendix A holds the emerging priorities and actions that need to be taken. The timescales for
the actions are categorised short, medium and long term where short term is 0-3 months, medium
term is 3-9 months and long term is 9-18months.

5.0 Issues that need further consideration
Alongside the emerging priorities there are other issues that require wider consideration as to how
they could be tackled and by whom. Again these have been identified by our response partners.
Young people and mental health: It has been recognised that there is a significant gap in service
provision in this area. Traditionally voluntary and public services have focused on the older
population due to the districts demographics and demands on services however as a
consequence of the pandemic significant issues around children and young people’s mental
health and wellbeing have come to the forefront. This is largely due to the suspension of school
provision . The young people were not allowed to see their friends, they were out of routine and
many have struggeled with the different ways of learning with the home schooling situation as
parents and carers juggled home schooling alongside work, other commtiments and life
challenges. Tensions within many homes have increased. Once back in the school setting
inevitably some pupils showed signs that the extended period at home has impacted on their
development and will require additional support.

Post lockdown/isolation anxieties and confidence to be active within the community
again: There is an increasing number of people stating that even though lockdown and
shielding restrictions are lifting that they still do not want to go out and will require support for
things like shopping and prescription services. People are still concerned about the risk of
catching the virus, they are afraid and feel vulnerable and have lost confidence in going about
daily business. This will reduce their independence which will inevitably have an impact on their
mental health and wellbeing and increase loneliness and social isolation.

6

Page 32

The majority of the anxieties arise from other people’s behaviours within the community, for
example not maintaining social distancing or not wearing face coverings when required to do so.
This has been evidenced more recently by the residents covid community response survey. For
those who haven’t been out, small steps need to be taken to build confidence again whilst they
re-familiarise themselves within different settings. These individuals may require support and
encouragement to do this but it also needs other community members to allow this process to
happen too. Repeat communication on the key safety messages should assist with some of the
behavioural challenges.

Health Inequalities: As the pandemic has progressed and further research has been
conducted reports have begun to identifying who within our community is more at risk should
they get the virus or come into contact with someone with the virus. Specifically these residents
are those who are over the age of 70 years, clinically vulnerable due to a pre-existing medical
condition, are from a Black, Asian or minority ethnic background, living in a care home or
working in a job where they have greater contact with members of the public such as a nurse,
taxi driver or security guard. Those who already have poor health and wellbeing are also more
vulnerable, this may be due to them having less income and are more likely to suffer food, fuel
and financial hardship. Consideration needs to be given as to how ongoing targeted support and
advice can be provided to these groups and individuals as part of recovery so to reduce their
risk

Building on the connections made especially with Health services: Relationships have
developed over the last 12 months between all partners, some already existed and some new
ones have formed. New opportunities have come forward and it is recognised that these need to
be built upon over the recovery period and into the future. Partners have felt that the
relationships with the Health Service in particular have proved positive and would like these
relationships to continue. Given the increase in poor mental health and wellbeing amongst
residents due to the impact of the virus there are opportunities to develop relationships between
the community groups who have been supporting residents. They know who is vulnerable within
their neighbourhood and who needs Primary Care, Mental Health and Children and Adolescent
Mental Health Services. Place based models provide resilience to address family and personal
health and wellbeing and would reduce the strain on services.

Community Transport: Across the district there are several community transport providers
whose services were relied on by many residents who needed to attend hospital, doctor and other
appointments as well as to go shopping. Many of these services have been suspended due to the

7

Page 33

social distancing guidelines and the sanitizing requirements after each journey. One community
hub has implemented a solution in the use of mini buses but can only transport one resident at a
time. Other providers can’t resume provision as the service is based on volunteers often using
their own vehicles. Currently NYCC are providing interim transport for individuals needing to get
to hospital appointments.
As we return to a norm more appointments will be ecouraged however those who rely on
community transport may struggle to get there in the longer term once the short term solutions
have ended.

Digital technology: As well as digital skills there is an emerging issue of those who have less
income and do not have access to digital equipment or the income to pay for the broadband.
Given the majority of home schooling and online services including benefits, shopping and staying
in touch with family all require the internet those who are in this situation will be increasingly
excluded from opportunities. We know that some schools have provided students with solutions
however this is not across the board. Also those in temporary accommodation may not have this
facility.

6.0 Monitoring and review
The community recovery plan is a dynamic document in that it will be continuously reviewed,
monitored and amended so it is flexible and reactive to the changing situation that communities
and service providers face. There are regular scheduled reviews with the six CSO’s and the key
community food providers. Internally within Harrogate Borough Council we monitor the position
on a fortnightly basis formally with the wider Covid Management Team as well as the service
based reviews and contacts. Officers meet on a monthly basis to review progress against the
community recovery action plan. Internal and external data is considered to get an idea of the
situation across the district based on the priorities identified.
There are officers that are part of the wider North Yorkshire resilience structure and whom are
reviewing the situation on a weekly basis. A District wide local outbreak group has also been
established to review outbreaks across the district that may require support and interventions.
The community recovery plan has links with the North Yorkshire Outbreak Management Plan.
Should a local outbreak occur some of the actions would provide/ contribute to the local
management delivery. All the structures that have been developed as part of the response
phase would be escalated again and together we would be able to mobilise very quickly to
ensure the most vulnerable are provided for across the district.

8

Page 34

9

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A - Harrogate district Community Recovery Plan for Covid-19
Action Plan
Date updated

Page 37

17th September
2020
22nd October
2020
20th November
2020
22nd January
2021
April 2021

Detail/ amendments
Action plan updated by internal community response group
Updated including Volunteering Oscar presentation link & other
action updates
Updated following national lockdown restrictions
Updated following new lockdown, internal group meeting and
quarterly update
Updated following internal group meetings and quarterly progress
updates. Road map published Feb 2021.

Short term = 0-3 months
Medium term = 3-9 months
Long term = 9-18 months

1

1.0 PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE GATHERING
Community Recovery
Theme
1.1 Resilience planningCovid response- spikes and
local outbreaks

Evidence/ intelligence/ Issue

Action to be taken

Timescales

Action update

How we maintain service provision
alongside the recovery phase. Many
of those working on response, both
public sector and community are
expected to look at recovery at the
same time and this brings with it
capacity and sustainability issues.
The volunteer base is stable currently
but as more return to work or if there
is a local outbreak this may reduce.

To continue to review the current
provision on a weekly basis and provide
any additional support to the CSO's
should there be an increase in demand.

M

CSO reviews were completed in April
2021, CSO funding has now being
awarded until September 2021, it will
then be reviewed.
CSO's report that their volunteer
base remains sustainable to manage
with the existing demand.

Those who have been isolating may
continue to do so through personal
choice and may still require food and
prescription collection provision as
they are not confident enough to go
out and access these themselves yet.

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities

Regular 6 weekly meetings are
scheduled with CSO lead managers.
These are an opportunity to share
intelligence, good practice identify
any concerns and discuss ideas and
initiatives. Weekly contact with
CSO’s in place alongside this from
Stronger Communities.

Page 38
1.2 Government reviews &
changes to restrictions

Lead

To ensure there is capacity within the
existing structures for an increase in
demand for these provisions depending
on Government revisions

The national food parcels and
prescription services ceased from the
31st July 2020.

S

CSO’s are also collaborating to
support NHS with volunteer capacity
at the Harrogate District Vaccine
facility(ies).
Shielding for CEVs formally ceased
31st March. Registration for priority
shopping through the NSS has now
closed. Those already on the priority
shopping list will remain on the list
subject to the supermarkets decision
on whether to continue this provision.
CSO support will remain in place
until at least September 2021 for
anyone who requires support within
the community.

2

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities

CSO support is ongoing, this can be
accessed directly or via referral from
HBC or NYCC.

Informal welfare checks continue to
vulnerable customers however now
shielding ceased again 31st March.
1.3 Community Recovery
planning

Some intelligence is being collected
currently through the CSO's and our
partners but wider information on the
impact needs to be sought and fed
into the recovery planning work. This
needs to be ongoing due to
circumstances changing on a
frequent basis.

To consult with the community including
ward Councillors, Parish Council's,
Emergency Planning groups and
committees as to the key issues
impacting their residents locally as well
as HBC Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

L

CSO’s planning to do some of their
own insight work on the residents
they are supporting linked to the road
map milestones. Will report findings
to the joint CSO meetings to
consider.

Page 39
1.4 Welfare calls

Regular meetings with the 6 CSO’s
now happening every 6 weeks to
gain insight into what is happening
within their localities, to share issues,
problem solving and ideas.

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities

Stakeholder consultation held from
June-31st July complete and CRP
updated following the outcome.
Wider resident’s consultation held
until the 31st August. Results to be
analysed and recovery plan
amended accordingly.
Calls resumed for lockdown 3 – all
completed by early March. Just under
4,000 calls made to the most
vulnerable to check on them.

An agreement needs to be made on
resources/capacity needed to continue
this support in consultation with NYCC
who are the lead for the shielded cohort.

Lockdown 1: All shielded residents
called or received an SMS text or
failing that a door knock to check
whether they still required assistance
prior to shielding pausing at the end
of July and if needed help referred to

3

S/M/L

New procedures were in place for
lockdown three to contact those CEV
requesting support. Calls were
prioritised through registration and
previous contact. Other methods of
engagement were also used such as
SMS texts so support could be
deployed to those who needed it.
HBC staff resumed calls.

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Shielding
lead & data
manager

CSO or into NYCC HAS depending
on vulnerabilities and need. Just over
15,000 calls made by HBC

New CEVs identified due to risk
stratification work all received a letter
to signpost to support if needed.

Lockdown 2- call demand for support
lower due to the ongoing work done
to tell residents how to get support if
needed. NYCC customer contact
centre have carried out the follow up
calls. Also no shielding as such so
less restrictive compared to lockdown
1.

Registration for call support was
lower than in lockdown one.

As agreed HBC continues to work in
partnership with NYCC to carry out
calls if required. HBC continue to
check on Housing tenants
recognised as requiring a welfare
check in.

Staff who are redeployed have been
carrying out these calls however as
services and facilities re-open this
capacity will be reduced although it is
important to maintain this contact.

Page 40

2.0 SUPPORT FOR OUR RESIDENTS
2.1 Supporting our vulnerable residents affected by Covid-19 (which needs to take into account further spikes and outbreaks)
Community Recovery
Theme

2.1.1 Shielding cohort /
Clinically Extremely
Vulnerable

Evidence/ intelligence/ Issue
Currently 649 individuals are in
receipt of the central government
food parcel scheme as they are
shielding (11/6/20). Awaiting review
outcomes wk/c 15th June 2020.
Currently have 6289 residents
shielding across the district although
this changes on a daily basis
(18.6.20).

Action to be taken
Calls to shielded cohort to check on
support requirements

Timescales

Action update

Lead

L

CEV shielding in lockdown 3
support- welfare calls all completed.
SMS txts, emails and letters sent to
new cohort advised to shield
following the review of those deemed
at higher risk.

NYCC/ HBC

Welfare calls to vulnerable housing
tenants and other vulnerable
customers that we are aware of
continue to check on wellbeing.

4

2.2.2 Test & Trace cohort

Three tier system, escalate to NY
Public Health if Local Outbreak
Management Plan need to be
implemented.
CSO/universal plus system in place
to pick up shopping requests if
needed.
Will be monitored if large impact
expected.
If local providers are required to
isolate could impact local food supply
chain.

Sign posting of community support
available to those who are entering a
period of isolation through existing
community Covid-19 provisions

L

LA's have mainly been given
information on businesses that have
had an outbreak and supporting
information is provided.
As the Test and Trace is still largely
carried out nationally individual
details aren’t provided unless there is
a significant outbreak.
Now that local support for Test and
Trace has been introduced more
local residents are advised as to
where to get help if it is required via
NYCC Customer Services.

Local support now in place to assist
the Test and Trace process.

Page 41

We continue to provide information
on where to get help at every
opportunity through various
communication channels.
Data Sharing agreement in place to
allow customer contact details held
by HBC to be shared with NYCC to
support Test and Trace contacting
Test and Trace isolation grant
scheme established and launched.
Information about the CSO provided
at application stage so individuals
are aware. Criteria extended to cover
a parent/carer of a child who may
need to isolate from March. Both
main and discretionary scheme
extended and funded to end of June
21.
Locality Outbreak management
weekly meeting is now in place for
the Harrogate District facilitated by
the Public Health Team attended by
statutory partners. Weekly case rate
data is analysed at actions are

5

HBC/NYCC/
CSO'S

agreed in the following areas;
Testing, Vaccines, enforcement,
community engagement and
communications.
2.2.3 Those in isolation

Numbers unknown but there will be
those who are in isolation as have the
virus or have the symptoms.

Sign posting of community support
available to those who are entering a
period of isolation through existing
community Covid-19 provisions.

S

Will provide information as part of the
Self Isolation Test and Trace Support
Grants application.

Page 42

2.2.4 Homeless and those
in temporary
accommodation

Support is available to those selfisolating via the 6 CSO’s across the
District. Individuals if in need of
support are directed by NHS Test
and Trace to contact their Local
Authority

HBC/NYCC/
CSO'S

Continued communications referring
to the 6 CSO's that are there if help
required. Resident’s information is
letter has been sent to each
household in the District.
Residents Newsletter includes
information on where to access
support.

Those identified as homeless and
rough sleeping and housed for the
lockdown period continue to require
support as part of the transition plans
back into the community.

Continue to check in with vulnerable
tenants and those who were identified
as needing additional support due to
Covid-19.

6

S

Officers continue the ‘check-in’ with
those residents currently in
temporary accommodation to ensure
their safety, this has now increased
to daily contact as per government
recommendation. Additional letters
continue to be issued on an
individual basis to reflect flouting of
the requested rules.
Generally we have seen increase in
cases where domestic violence and
or Affordability are identified as the
primary reason for contact.
Conscious that the changes to
eviction rules are likely to have a
negative impact on resources
available through the team.
Allocation processes have returned
to ‘normal’ and so movement from
temporary accommodation into

HBCHousing

social housing and other is creating
movement.
Temporary accommodation remains
at full capacity, many residents have
been issued with notice and are
currently resident on discretionary
grounds to reflect the pandemic.
Obviously this is restrictive and
impacts on our ability to
accommodate those approaching
service.
2.2.5 Rough sleepers

Page 43

Continue to check in with vulnerable
tenants and those who were identified
as needing additional support due to
Covid-19.

M

Develop a next steps plan for those in
accommodation under a Covid licence

S

7

Rough sleeper initiatives continue
with continued attention on ensuring
everyone remains accommodated
and off the streets. The 8 units of
accommodation erected and utilised
for the councils Severe Weather
Emergency Accommodation
Provision (SWEP) are no longer in
situ, however we continue to monitor
the weather and provide
accommodation where appropriate.
We are utilising a multi-agency
approach to determine the best
outcomes for those accommodated,
this includes assistance with drug
and substance misuse issues and
effectively managing mental health
problems.
HBC have now purchased 3
properties utilising Next Step
funding, these will be utilised for
rough sleepers and are in the
process of refurbishment to ensure
they are ‘fit for purpose.’
An additional Rough Sleeper funding
bid has been submitted to support a
Private Sector Support Worker and a
Dual Diagnosis Officer, both posts
much needed within the district to

HBCHousing

HBCHousing

ensure that those affected by rough
sleeping can not only access but
sustain onward accommodation.

2.2 Food
2.2.1 Sustainability and
longevity of the community
food provision

Lockdown 1: Demand for food
parcels and hot meals is still
increasing.
Update on demand: April 2021

Work around volunteer base and future
plans for the provision. Look to
coordinate provision across
geographies/ neighbourhoods so the
provision can go further.

S/M/L

Resurrected Bites
06/04/20- 244 people fed, 66 orders
05/04/21- 160 people fed, 60 orders

Coordinated across District
emergency food provision is still in
place.
A shared leaflet has been produced
providing information for those
wanting to support providers and
those needing provision.

CSO's/ HBC

Providers are meeting on a regular
basis look at referrals, customers,
opportunities to share and
collaborate and any gaps in provision

Peaks06/07/20- 365 people fed, 143 orders
31/08/20- 328 people fed, 121 orders
21/12/20- 400 people fed, 127 orders

Page 44

No issues are reported with stock
levels. Providers are looking to the
future and considering what the post
covid need will be.

People fed = adults & children

NYLAF Covid 19 emergency food
voucher for those isolating and
unable to pay for food has been
uplifted for the duration of lockdown
3; max of six claims in a 12 week
period.
Once the furlough schemes end there
may be an increase in further
demand for food.

Ensuring staff and partners refer to the
correct food outlet based on need and
circumstances

8

L

HBC staff/ councillors reminded
about the various community food
providers across the district. Comms
out to residents through various
means to remind people where they
can get assistance with getting food.

HBC

2.2.2 Reducing the
dependency on the food
providers by identifying
those who have additional
support needs to help them
back to self sufficiency

Provide resilience to the community
food provision offer

Community centres and staff can be
utilised to work with current groups to
package food parcels and cook food if
necessary. Adding some longer term
resilience to offer

Unsure of impact on food provision
during school holidays if food
vouchers to vulnerable families are
not continued. Need to identify other
needs & ensure referrals made to
services

Ensuring referral pathways are
identified and made

S/M/L

M/L

HBC- CTS

All partners

17th May meeting to look at referral
pathways into other services and
support for those who are dependent
on community food and have other
support needs.

Page 45
2.2.3 Test & Trace

Currently not required due to the
capacity in the community system.
Two emergency community food
providers were awarded Defra
emergency food supplies funding
through NYCC. Grants to support ongoing provision until March 21 with
further funding opportunities opened
in November.
HBC internal food guide updated on
a monthly basis and circulated to key
staff so they are aware of any
changes to referral pathways.
Community food providers are now
carrying out more assessments on
those needing food to understand
their situation so that they ensure
they are getting the right support and
advice and can refer on if necessary.

Local community providers and
volunteers may be suspended
through a local outbreak

To ensure food provision continues
during localised outbreaks- to ensure
contingencies are in place.

9

L

Have capacity within structures to
deal with this situation if it arises
through the priority online shopping
schemes, food vouchers, and the
Ready for Anything volunteer
scheme.
Emergency community food
providers would collaborate if
required.

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities

2.3 Housing
2.3.1 Increased debts,
multiple debts & tenancy
issues

See below as one indicator

Ensure, as far as is practicable, that
team members are aware of individuals
struggling and refer as appropriate to
support.

M/L

Home visits not currently being
carried out and phone contact is
used to chase long term debts and to
offer support.

HBC
Housing

Independent Living Officers are not
carrying out routine visits including in
sheltered housing schemes where
daily contact continues to be made
by phone. Lifelines are still being
fitted as required.
Housing Officers from estates are
conducting external site inspections
only, if required. No home visits are
being carried out at present.

Page 46

Arrangements will be reviewed in
April in line with the Governments
roadmap to recovery.

2.3.2 Paying rent arrears or
other housing debt

The housing options team are
completing affordability assessments
on those accessing the service and
utilising the support team to signposting to debt management
agencies where appropriate.
Approx. 10% (£26k) of current rent
arrears are linked to the Covid 19
situation. Possible second major
spike when furlough period ends if
UE increases but this now delayed to
the end of March 2021.

Accounts monitored weekly and
individual support offered with welfare
benefit claims and realistic payment
arrangements made.

10

M/L

Number of cases with arrears linked
to Covid-19 and the level of debt has
remained stable. Total rent arrears at
year end were £32,000 (18%) lower
than last year end.
Work ongoing and working with the
Welfare Team looking at DHPs for
arrears and helping with weekly rent.

HBC
Housing

2.3.3 Increase in demand
for accommodation and/or
tenancy moves

2.3.4 Tenants who are
furloughed

Likely to be an increased demand
either through waiting list or
homeless route due to issues around
domestic abuse linked to Covid 19
lockdown
Likely to see an increase in the
numbers of HO referrals for this
purpose especially towards the end
of August –

Provide advice and assistance to
applicants from within and from outside
area (in refuges).

M/L

Training has been provided to all
options staff and additional teams
training is planned.

HBC
Housing

Training has been procured for officers
to ensure accurate advice can be given

L

Too early yet to see impact of the
end of furlough. Should have a
clearer picture by the end of the
October.

HBC
Housing

Situation continues to be monitored
with furlough now extended again.

2.4 Increased poverty or personal debt
2.4.1 Benefits: Existing
HB/CTR benefit customers

Page 47

400% increase in new benefit claims
occurred during peak pandemic
period. Has stabilised at 100%
increase currently but likely to peak
again on removal of government
furlough/SEISS measures and as
local businesses close.

Sustain timely and accurate benefit
provision for the increasing numbers of
residents who are now claiming
HB/CTR. Provide extra support for
those new to the benefit system.

S/M

Caseload has increased by 632 new
customers across the year. Volume
of incoming new claims has now
settled at 32% higher than pre-Covid
levels.
Internal exercise was undertaken in
July/Aug to look at impact on claim
turnaround times during the peak
period. Measures were put in place
to streamline processes. As a result,
processing times for new claims and
changes in circs has significantly
improved - 24.6 days to 16.6 days
(HB New Claims); 33.3 days to 20.7
days (CTR New Claims); 5.31 days
to 3.6 days. (changes in circs)

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

North Yorkshire CA's have received
grant funding from NYCC to increase
capacity within the local CA's until
March 21.
Test & Trace Isolation Support
grant scheme established and
launched on the 12th October for
those on specific benefits who need
to isolate for up to 2 weeks due to

2.4.2 Local Residents in
employment who are asked
to self-isolate due to COVID

11

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

the virus. Local discretionary
scheme also set up for those who
are not on benefits but normally have
low earnings and have lost income
due to COVID.
Schemes now extended to 30th June
2021. In addition, from 8th March
2021, schemes were widened to
allow parents and guardians to claim
an award if they are having to take
time off work to care for a child who
has to isolate.

2.4.3 Under-claimed
benefits

Page 48
2.4.4 DHPs for vulnerable
UC/HB claimants who have
financial difficulties in
paying rent.

Benefits are often under-claimed due
to lack of awareness, vulnerability.
Not all customers on UC claim the
CTR they may be due; not all
pensioners claim HB. The current
crisis limits the face to face support
that some customers require to make
a claim.

Greater promotion of HB/CTR and
Welfare Support Officer role via leaflets,
briefing sessions, stakeholder contact.
Ask DWP to put promotional message
on UC customer journals.
Increase use of customer call backs to
complete online claim forms for
customers.
Links with Citizens Advice Help To
Claim Universal Credit service https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/aboutus/contact-us/contact-us/help-to-claim/

M/L

Annual hardship pot of £265k
received from gvt to give extra, short
term assistance to those on benefits
who are struggling to pay their rent

Greater promotion of DHPs via leaflets,
briefing sessions, stakeholder contact.
Carry out targeted take-up exercise for
those on UC.

M/L

12

At 12/04/21: 305 awards made.
£152.5k awarded.
Promotion of HB/CTR set up with
wider local support agencies Knaresborough Connectors; local
Job Centre; Foodbank.
Request made to DWP management
at regional and national level for
promotional message to be added to
UC journals.
Customer call backs have replaced
home visits to help customers make
a claim.
Welfare Support Officer has assisted
341 customers and generated
£469.2k of extra benefit income into
customer pockets that would
otherwise have not been claimed.
Stronger links established with
NYCC Benefits Maximisation Team
to promote HB/CTR and refer
customers to the NYCC Team to
claim non HBC benefits.
Promotional work has been
increased and is working
successfully. Has resulted in
increased applications and spending.
During 2020/2021:

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

Page 49

2.4.5 Payment of business
grants and Council Tax
Hardship fund.

shortfall or need help to move
somewhere cheaper.

Ask DWP to put promotional message
on UC customer journals.
Adaptation of DHP policy to meet
current local need.

Government has provided additional
grants to the Revenues dept to
support local businesses.
C.Tax Hardship fund of £863k
received to give extra payments of up
to £150 to CTR customers.

Ensure that relevant businesses are
contacted to claim the grants. Ensure
that processes are put in place to award
hardship payments to eligible
customers.

All of the government hardship fund
of £265k was spent this year. The
service topped this pot up further
with an extra £15k from surplus
funds left over from the CTR
hardship scheme. Total spend for
year was £280k which is the highest
spend the LA has ever made. A
record number of awards were made
– 399.
Exercise undertaken to identify,
contact and offer DHPs to UC
customers who may need financial
help.
Monthly arrears prevention meetings
ongoing with Housing Team to
identify tenants impacted financially
by COVID who are showing early
rent arrears – contact made to offer
DHP to prevent further escalation of
arrears and associated problems.
£16.5k of assistance given to 18
customers.
S

Financial, Health & Wellbeing info
leaflet gone out in with Council Tax
reminders.
Over £78 million of business grants
paid to nearly 5000 businesses
through the 11 Government funded
business grant schemes since March
2020. Grant support continues from
April 2021 as lockdown restriction
ease and businesses re-open with a
further £15 million allocated
During 2020/21
Council Tax hardship payment of up
to £150 was automatically applied to
council tax accounts for Council Tax
Reduction claimants not in receipt of

13

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

full entitlement. 4042 local customers
received help - £508.9k awarded.
Surplus funding from the fund was
also used to : Top up the above awards by
another £75 per account in April
2021 – 2137 customers helped £152.4k awarded.
 Top up the DHP fund - £20k ring
fenced (see above)
Increase in rent arrears and other
debts brought about by change in
financial circumstances. Will include
those impacted on due to furlough.

Ensure that all customers know how to
access relevant benefits and debt
advice (newsletters/website/ referrals).

L

Financial, Health & Wellbeing info
leaflet gone out in with Council Tax
reminders.

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services

2.4.7 Fuel poverty: Inability
to pay fuel bills

As income is reduced the ability to
pay fuel bills will become an issue
especially in the autumn as furlough
comes to an end and the real impact
of the virus becomes prevalent

HBC will provide fuel debt advice to
those identified though the Warm and
Well project run by CFY.

M/L

The debt referral partnership with
CFY will allow us to provide
Emergency Fuel vouchers of either
£25 or £50 to referred cases

HBC
Revenue &
Welfare
Services &
Partnerships
&
Engagement

Page 50

2.4.6 Debt advice

In the last quarter (Jan-March 21)
there were 82 referrals from the
Harrogate district and 23 households
were given the fuel vouchers.

2.5 Mental Health & Wellbeing
2.5.1 Support & advice

All organisations are reporting an
increase in mental health concerns
either as an employer or
service/support provider, including
the impact on all ages especially
young people who have been at
home and the parents managing
home schooling, anxiety to go out
once restrictions are relaxed and
those who have been in a caring role.

Info leaflet on where to get advice and
support

M/L

Financial, Health & Wellbeing info
leaflet has been updated and is now
in circulation. Leaflets taken to
vaccination centre to distribute to
residents who may require extra
support.
Managers of CSO’s and Emergency
food providers have attended a
Mental Health Information session
led by NYCC Mental Health Services
and Living Well. To raise awareness

14

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities

of support services and how they can
access formal and informal support
and Advice for the individual and
their organisations.
Route One to Wellbeing
collaboration has secured a further
12months of funding, they continue
to work closely with social
prescribing link workers.

MIND in Harrogate have increased
services and are in partnership with
TEWV offering Out of Hours mental
health support on a Saturday and
Sunday evening.

Page 51

NYLAF Covid 19 emergency food
voucher for those isolating and
unable to pay for food has been
uplifted for the duration of lockdown
3; max of six claims in a 12 week
period.

Comms campaign sign posting to where
people can get help including the Mind
helpline and TEWV provision.

L

Information leaflet circulated and
hand delivered to residents and
partners
Leaflets provided to vaccination
centres to give out when people
attend for their vaccine

2.5.2 Multi-agency support

Individuals who may be creating high
demand on services - consider
referral via Community Safety Hub &
Focus Pathway for multi-agency
support and action.

Focus Pathway - via Community Safety
Hub

15

S/M/L

The Community Safety Hub
continues to meet on a fortnightly
basis for general Hub cases. Once a
month a meeting (Kaleidoscope)
takes places that has a focus on
mental health and has a specific
caseload that supports individuals
who are high demand on services
with often multiple complex needs

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ NYCC
Stronger
Communities
Julia Stack,
Community
Safety &
CCTV
Manager,
HBC /
Manages
Community
Safety Hub

including drug and alcohol abuse
and mental health. Work continues to
develop the full Focus Pathway
model which is led by TEWV. The
Hub is delighted to confirm that we
now have a dedicated Adult Mental
Health Social Worker attached to the
Hub. This is a new appointment and
is already linking in with HBC
services and other partners. The
Community Safety Hub continues to
work closely with partner agencies to
identify risks and alternative
solutions which may include
enforcement.
Likely to see an increase in numbers
of those with mental health issues -

To ensure that clear referral paths are
available through CMHT and Living Well

2.5.4 Loneliness and
isolation

Young people are suffering the
impact of not seeing their family and
friends. Impact of the virus on single
parents and carers.
The older population have been
focused on and some have had an
increase in contact and its how we
manage the transition back if it can’t
be continued. Harrogate district has
had a focus of older people service
provision so there are existing
provisions, in comparison it has
highlighted the limited provision for
young families and young people
across the district, immediate support
in the short term and long term
development is needed.
During the height of the pandemic
classes for residents with long term
health conditions and rehabilitation
needs have been delivered online.

To consider how we communicate to
those who are digitally excluded who
need support and advice and who just
want to know what is happening within
their community/neighbourhood/town.
Short term/long term focus on
developing/stimulating support within
communities for young families/young
people

Page 52

2.5.3 Hostel
Residents/Tenants with
mental health issues

2.5.5 Physical health of
those shielding/ isolating

S/M/L

M/L

CMHT referral pathways have been
refined and additional referrals made
following reassessment.

HBC
Housing

Information hand delivered through
volunteer networks.
Community newsletters through
CSO's informing residents of
opportunities and news

All partners

Leaflets provided at vaccination
centres providing information on
where to get support
Information shared with all public
service providers for the next
campaign from the NY Loneliness
Project that covers loneliness in the
workplace.

Active health team to include a
continued online delivery package for
shielding residents to ensure they can
continue to exercise in a safe manner.

16

S/M/L

Phone calls continue to regular
community centre users to ensure

HBC CTS
Active
Health Team

As the sector moves towards opening
up venues, those shielding can't be
left behind with no provision. To do
so would lead to both physical and
emotional long term issues.

they are ok and to meet any needs
identified.

The offer must include live link ups with
other class members for much needed
social interaction.

W/C 12 April classes re started at
community centres for clients on a
medical pathway (Cancer, Cardiac
stroke and Parkinson’s). All other
classes continue online.

Page 53

In response to increased demand for
services due to deconditioning during
lockdown a joint bid between HBC
and HDFT has been submitted to
West Yorkshire and Harrogate
Health care partnership to fund a
long covid exercise rehab class and
additional capacity for our falls
prevention classes. Outcome should
be known by end of May. If
successful classes will be delivered
District wide.

2.6 Digital Inclusion
2.6.1 Service provision

Face to face services will not be
available for some time and many will
remain in some form of isolation and
need to be able to access services

To look at how services are provided
and communicated, digital skills
opportunities to be promoted to key
groups

L

Resources shared with partners on a
monthly basis through the Harrogate
district – Get Digital project
newsletter (HBC) to assist people
with their technology so residents
can get online. 28 community digital
champions now assisting residents
with various support requests.
Information for the Citizens online
digital helpline promoted through
HBC residents news. 3 HD residents
now volunteering with the Citizens
Online helpline too.
NY reboot launched to collect
unwanted devices and to refurbish
and provide to those in need of one.

17

All partners

To reinvigorate the Harrogate District
Get online project that uses community
champions to provide digital skills
assistance

M/L

Reminders sent out to champions
who expressed a previous interest in
becoming involved. Opportunity to
access digital learning resources
through the network send to partners
and new networks developed
through covid and had more
champions sign up. Learning
opportunities shared within the
community and with partners so
referrals can be made onto courses
of interest. Monthly newsletters sent
out highlighting the opportunities.
Currently have 28 external
champions and 14 HBC internal
champions with a reach across the
Harrogate district. 7 champions who
have also volunteered to be part of
the support to the North Yorkshire
wide help line.

HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
& all project
stakeholders

2.6.2 Isolation & loneliness

Those who are shielding/isolating are
more likely to be over 70 years and
may lack digital skills. Recognise that
it is not just older people who lack
digital skills however

Promote opportunities to help people
get online and contact friends and
families and stay active within the
community through digital technologies

L

Partner information shared in
Residents News and
internally/externally across the
community of the online training
opportunities or where residents can
seek advice and support to do so.

Harrogate
District Get
Digital
stakeholders
/ CSO's

2.6.3 Rural connection
issues

Where broadband coverage is poor
access to digital remains an issue

Promote the Gigabit rural voucher
scheme

M

Information shared with Parishes &
partners & in Residents News

CSO's/ HBC/
all partners

Page 54

NY VCS survey during covid found:
44% are finding digital exclusion an
issue for the people they work with
• digital issues are across all ages
and due to: access to technology,
affordability and strength of wi-fi; lack
of confidence and ability to use

18

3.0 COMMUNITY TENSIONS
Community Recovery
Theme

Evidence/ intelligence/ Issue

3.1 Tensions arising from
social distancing measures
and covid 19 restrictions
that remain

As restrictions are changed some will
not abide by the social distancing
measures, especially in busy tourist/
parks and gardens causing tensions
between residents

Action to be taken
Communication and enforcement
deployment

Page 55
19

Timescales

Action update

Lead

M/L

Communications is one of the seven
themes in the North Yorkshire
County Council Outbreak
Management Plan and
communications concerning COVID
safe arrangements are ongoing,
supplementing national guidance
encouraging adherence to the
guidelines.
Since the easing of restriction of the
12 April joint weekday and weekend
evening patrols have taken place
with NYP. With the police
responsible for ‘people’ and Safer
Communities focusing on the
premises. The first phase has been
around working closely with
premises to comply and give advice
and assistance. We continue to see
increased demand on our services
relating to covid work. A digivan has
been deployed after securing funds
from the OFPCC, the focus is on
Covid compliant messages and
community safety messages (get
home safely, drink and drug drive
messages, know your limits). Safer
Communities representatives
continue to work with the Covid
Locality Group which ensures
targeted local activity and responses.
This model of partnership working
has proved successful.

HBC Safer
Communities
/
Communicati
on &
Engagement

4.0 SUPPORT FOR THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR
4.1 Support to CSO's
4.1.1 Local community
single points of contact

Support to CSO's in place until at
least 30th September

To ensure the CSO's are sustainable so
that they can continue to provide
services to the community

M/L

CSO's funding in place until Sept 21.
Regular meetings now held with all
the CSO’s as a collective to share
intelligence of what is happening on
the ground and ideas/initiatives as
well as to look for any joint
collaboration that can be done.

Stronger Communities considering
long term position of CSO's in their
recovery plan (Restore, Retain,
Reimagine) - urban area long-term
model needs further consideration.

NYCC
Stronger
Communities
/ HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement

Looking to do some consultation on
confidence of those they are
supporting to see how ready they are
to go out and resume activities once
the restrictions have eased.

4.2 Support to wider VCS

Page 56

4.2.1 Voluntary and
community organisations
suffering a loss of income or
changed circumstances due
to the lockdown.

To insert HD results from CFY survey
once received. CFY Survey
NYCC directorates and SC
considering essential areas of
support
Opportunity to consider with
partners/funders how sector can best
be supported,
Need to understand VCS picture in
Harrogate District.
Recognition that not every
organisation/group will be able to be
saved.

NY task & finish group established to
look at this. To look at local results of
the NY survey and decide if further work
is required, links to THE LOCAL FUND
campaigns.

M/L

Awaiting detailed analysis being
undertaken by Leeds University of
Harrogate District Survey Data.. .
Community First Yorkshire working
with VCS to support collaborations
Meeting to discuss this in more detail
to be scheduled with SC/HBC/CFY
THE LOCAL FUND awarded just
over £37k to 10 groups in January 21
to assist with running costs to keep
the lights on over the next 6 months.
The fund will be open again for
applications in May.

20

NYCC
Stronger
Communities
/ HBC
Partnerships
&
Engagement
/ THE
LOCAL
FUND
project
Group

4.2.2 Maximising potential
opportunities from the
pandemic-related increase
in volunteering and
community action

Opportunity of developing CSO
model
On line availability of services has
increased uptake in some areas
Increased number of new volunteers
engaging with VCS
Opportunity across District; key
community connectors identified and
proactive in responding to Covid 19
at a Neighbourhood level

NY task & finish group established to
look at this
Response and Recovery will be
concurrent activities as both North
Yorks and City of York partners are still
actively in Response phase – it is
considered this will continue for some
time as the demand from Test and
Trace start to impact.
The top three issues for this theme are:
1.Promotion and continued
development of community led, place
based approaches – optimising use of
local assets and building on Community
Support Organisation /Community Hub
models.

Page 57

2.Identify new models of investment for
the voluntary sector
a. Coordination of national and local
investment strategies to ensure targeted
investment in priority services (avoiding
feast and famine scenarios)
b. Explore opportunities for coinvestment between health and local
government
c. Explore local investment funding
models and crowd-funding approaches
d. Influencing commissioning practice
and increase effective co-production
3. Explore potential for improving
volunteer co-ordination and improve
volunteer opportunities/capacity (formal
and informal/spontaneous) across York
and North Yorkshire – including
maintaining volunteer capacity and
motivation

21

M/L

Update following from the Regional
Task Group Chairs Meeting held on
14th September on the Communities
and volunteering task and Finish
Group.
1. Governance model – agreement
for North Yorkshire Transformation
Board – Healthy People, Health
Places – to act as overall ‘owner’ of
the action plans.
Update: this is a multi-agency
partnership and is chaired by Dir of
Adult Social Care. Includes VCSE
representation and also acts as
governance for NYCC Stronger
Communities Programme who will be
taking a number of the actions
forward in its strategy People, Places
& Power.
Update: Discussions taken place
with partners to identify local
arrangements utilising existing
networks such as VCS strategic
leaders’ groups.
Update: DC Recovery Plans have
been developed and include high
level actions from this work-stream.
Update: CCG Recovery Plans also
reflect high level actions from this
work-stream.
2. Brief for evaluation of communities
/ volunteering role during response
agreed.

NYCC
Stronger
Communities
& partners

4.2.3 Acknowledging those
volunteers who have
assisted the vulnerable
across the district
throughout the pandemic

Hundreds of volunteers have come
forward to assist during the
pandemic. Hopefully people will
continue to volunteer now they have
had the experience

Celebrating the volunteers and
communities who have worked to
support residents

M/L

The volunteers celebration was part
of the HaDCA AGM in October.

TBC

https://www.hadca.org.uk/news/ce
lebration-volunteering-2020
To hold another Harrogate district
celebration of volunteering in
October 2021
Ripon are due to hold a celebration
June 2021 as part of national
volunteering week.

5.0 BEREAVEMENT AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR REMEMBERING THOSE WHO HAVE DIED
Recovery area

Page 58

5.1 Remembering

5.2 Grieving for those who
have been lost

5.3 Supporting staff and
volunteers who have been
directly involved with
supporting those who have
suffered a loss due to the
virus

Evidence/ intelligence/ Issue
76 deaths at Harrogate Hospital
(17.6.20)
124 deaths at Harrogate Hospital
(19/03/21)
NY deaths 650 for same time period
Providing an opportunity for staff and
relatives to come to terms with the
losses to aid mental health and the
bereavement process
Staff and volunteers have supported
those who have suffered a loss
throughout the pandemic and need
an opportunity to talk about their
experiences for their own mental
wellbeing

How

Timescales

Action update

Lead

Memorial to remember those who have
passed due to the virus

TBC

The new doves ascending sculpture
at Stonefall has been dedicated to
those lost through Covid.

Alison
Wilson HBC

To hold a memorial service for both staff
and those who have lost loved ones

TBC

Currently consulting with funeral
directors and celebrants to gather
their views on this. Possibly over a
weekend in July depending on
lockdown restrictions.

Alison
Wilson HBC

NY MIRT

S/M

TBC for bereavement staff. Have
been having some additional time off
over the past months. Again, need
to review in line with lockdown
restrictions.

Alison
Wilson HBC

22

Agenda Item 8

Agenda Item No. 08

REPORT TO:

Management Board
Overview & Scrutiny Commission
Cabinet

DATE:

26 April 2021
10 May 2021
26 May 2021

SERVICE AREA:

Organisational Development & Improvement

REPORTING OFFICER:

Improvement & Development Manager
(Sarah Cornforth)

SUBJECT:

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT,
2020/2021

WARDS AFFECTED:

All District

FORWARD PLAN REF:

N/A

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide an update on the year-end progress of the measures within the
Corporate Delivery Plan.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To review the report, recognise good performance and determine whether
any interventions need to be put in place to improve performance on those
measures that are off target.

2.2

That:
 Management Board (MB) receives the report and provides comments
before the report goes to Members
 Overview & Scrutiny receives the report and provides comments before
the report goes to Cabinet
 Cabinet receives the report, noting the comments from Overview &
Scrutiny and MB

3.0

RECOMMENDED REASON FOR DECISIONS

3.1

Our Corporate Plan sets out our long-term vision for the Harrogate district,
our aim as an organisation, our corporate priorities and the long term
outcomes that we want to achieve. The Delivery Plan is updated on an
annual basis and details what we will do, what our targets are and how we

Page 59

1

will measure these. This report tracks our progress against the Delivery
Plan.
4.0

ALTERNATIVE OPTION CONSIDERED AND RECOMMENDED FOR
REJECTION

4.1

No alternative options were considered as reporting progress on the
Council’s Corporate Delivery Plan performance is a key part of the
Council’s performance management arrangements.

5.0

SUMMARY

Action Status
0%

On Target
Slightly off Target

29%

Off Target

3%
0%

On Hold

61%

Actions with a future start date

7%
0%

Completed

Quarter 4 KPIs

Indicator Status

Short Trend

On target
7%
14%

36%

Slightly off
target

42%

41%

Off target

Improving
No change
Worsening

36%

Data only

17%

7%
Unknown

Indicators against
previous year
Improving
8%
23%

No change
Worsening

69%
Not
available

Page 60

2

Year End KPIs

Indicator Status
On target
17%
41%
42%

Indicators against
previous year
Improving

Slightly off
target

33%

Off target
67%
Data only

5.1

No change
Worsening

The Coronavirus Pandemic has had a significant
impact on how we have performed over the past
12 months. We have been in and out of
lockdowns, seen the majority of staff work from
home, and others have to be redeployed within
the organisation as a result of not being able to
do their normal job. We have not been able to
carry out some services as usual and the whole Council has had to adapt
to the changes quickly. Other services have found themselves taking on
additional work to respond to the pandemic. Despite all of this we have still
managed to complete and remain on track with most of our corporate
actions.
Some examples of additional work include:
 Paying out £76.7m worth of business support grants across 10
schemes
 Our #shopsafeshoplocal campaign to encourage the safe reopening of high streets and town centres
 A number of events confirmed for the summer of 2021
 Proposals to maximise the use of outdoor space
 Helping in setting up the NHS Nightingale Hospital in the Convention
Centre
 Developing and delivering our Covid Community support plan

Quarter 4 has taken place at a time while the country has been in a
national lockdown with government restrictions preventing the opening of
some functions to members of the public, such as Leisure Centres, Turkish
Baths and Museums amongst others.
2020/2021 has ended with actions performing strongly. 90% of actions
either are on target or completed. KPIs, however, have not performed as
strongly with only 36% on target in Q4 and 41% on target against annual
targets. A high percentage of KPIs are performing worse than the same
period last year for both Q4 and year end totals. This is consistent with
what we have seen throughout the year and reflects that actions were
reprioritised in light of the Coronavirus Pandemic, but KPI targets were
maintained to allow us to accurately see the impact of the pandemic. In
many cases, these KPIs are not too far of their original target, and the
percentages of PIs worsening are also fairly small.

Page 61

3

Corporate
priority

Status
We will do all we can to ensure changes to the way local
government is structured across the whole of Yorkshire benefit
us, our residents and the services we provide
Maximise the use of land and buildings for growth; enabling
local companies to stay and grow, and attracting inward
investment into the district
Attracting investment opportunities into the district
Work in partnership to address current and future operational
barriers to business growth by securing investment and
improvements in digital infrastructure
Promote the Harrogate Convention Centre as widely as
possible so we attract new events to the district and grow its
income to support our local economy
Work with others to ensure that there is a strong economic
recovery across the district from the impact of COVID19
Ensure plans are in place for sustainable development across
the district
Ensure the implementation of the Council’s carbon reduction
commitments and promote sustainable choices
Improve the ambience of our town centres
Ensure people have the opportunity to live and work in the
district because they have access to high-quality housing
which meets their needs and matches their income level
Work together to halve rough sleeping, prevent and reduce
homelessness and assist homeless households in finding long
term affordable and sustainable housing
We'll do all we can to help our residents build secure, safe and
healthy lives in thriving communities
Work with others to ensure that there is a plan in place to
support the community as it responds to the impact of
COVID19
As a thriving district council, we will continue to find innovative
and effective ways to manage our resources whilst ensuring
they reflect our priorities
Work with our public and voluntary sector partners to ensure
that our communities can access inclusive, joined up services
to improve the quality of life across the Harrogate district

6.0

Exceptions
Exceptions are areas of success or concern that have been identified
through the Council’s performance reporting software Pentana. For
projects this may be through achieving significant milestones or
encountering significant delays. For performance indicators (PIs) this will
include significant over/underperformances.
Key Successes:



This year saw HBC officers support the
development of the York and North Yorkshire
region devolution 'asks'. The 'asks' have been
finalised and formally agreed by all 9 of the 9

Page 62

4




local authorities and submitted to government for
consideration.
The Station Gateway project masterplan is
progressing with a Heads of Terms agreement
to partner commitment being drafted.
The digital skills and inclusion project was
accelerated with the launch of ‘Get Digital’.
There are now 28 external and 24 internal
Champions signed up to access the resources
that can be emailed or printed off to assist those
who need help to do something digitally. There
has been involvement from 30 VCS groups.

Key Concerns:



Economic Impact of HCC and HCC overall
income are forecast to be considerably below
target and previous year performance in final
accounts. This is due to the Centre being closed
for the entire year as a result of the
government’s continued lockdown on
conference and exhibition venues.
Key Successes:
 The Community Infrastructure Levy was adopted
by Council in July
 The proportion of waste sent for reuse, recycling
or composting this year is better than target and
at a consistent level with the previous year.
 The first phase implementation plan for the rollout of electric vehicle charging points has been
approved by Cabinet.
 The A59 Knaresborough – York feasibility study
is progressing well with a final report expected in
Q1.
 We continue to work with York and North
Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership and other
partners on a joint bid for the Local Authority
Delivery element of the Green Homes Grant.
Key Concerns:



n/a

Key Successes:







We have delivered 363 affordable homes, a
significant increase since last quarter and more
than the previous year.
The Spa Lane Development has been
completed and welcomed our first residents to
the facility.
In March 2019 there were 95 properties classed
as empty homes for five years or longer and
today this figure stands at 72. That is a 25%
decrease of properties empty for more than five
years.
Despite being above target in Q2, the number of
households living in temporary accommodation

Page 63

5

has remained consistent with Q3. Officers
continue to take a proactive approach to secure
social accommodation or private sector
alternatives for customers.
Key Concerns:





The number of new homes built by the council is
slightly off target with 22 against a target of 25.
The majority of completions are in Quarter 4
including 19 units as part of the Spa Lane
Hostel. However the Council has bought 25
homes in 20/21 significantly ahead of the target
of 15.
The average length of stay in both B&B
accommodation and temporary accommodation
are both significantly worse than target. However
the average length of a stay in temporary hostel
accommodation has reduced by over 5 weeks
since Q3 and is similar to at the same point last
year. These missed targets are due to the
challenges of moving people on during a
pandemic.

Key Successes:









New Photon based corporate websites (HBC,
Turkish Baths and Bracewell Homes), were
launched on 22 October.
The draft People Strategy has been endorsed by
Management Board and is awaiting
consideration for approval by HR Committee.
The covid recovery plans have been produced
and updated on a regular basis over the year to
ensure it remained compliant with current
government guidance.
Despite not being able to meet in person, we
have continued to support the HDPSLB which
continues to deliver the community Covid-19
recovery plan as its main partnership activity.
Commercial trials at the horticultural nursery
continue to yield success. The team have
exceeded both their budget target and stretch
target, with income standing at £153k 23.11% up
on budget for the year, which was an increase of
£36,977 from Q3.

Key Concerns:


6.6

n/a

Corporate Health Performance
All of the performance indicators are shown in Appendix 2 help contribute
towards our corporate priority of excellent public services.

6.7

Financial

Page 64

6

During 2020/21 we collected 97.5% of Council tax, which is very slightly
below our target of 98%. This is similar to the 97.9% collected in the
previous year. Collection has held up well considering the impact of the
pandemic, no court recovery action in 2020 and resources within Revenues
administering business grants.

% of Council Tax Collected

97.5% 98%
Target

6.8

Change in trend

Our Non-domestic rates collection level for 2020/21 was 91.9%, below
our target of 98%. This is a lot lower than the 97.2% we collected in the
previous year. Collection rates were impacted by the coronavirus pandemic
as no court recovery action has been able to take place.
% of Non-domestic Rates collected

91.9% 98%
Target

Change in trend

6.9

We collected 94% of in-year debt; slightly below the 95% target for the
year and down on the 98% collected in the previous year. At year-end
17.82% of total debt was over 90 days old; this is above the target of
13% for the year and better performance than the previous year (26.25%).
Of the debt over 90 days old, £92.9K was passed to Legal Services in
March.

6.10

Our Legal Services debt recovery level was 47.54% at year end; below
the 60% target. However, this represents a significant improvement on the
previous year’s figure of 18.79%. The total amount of debt referred to Legal
Services was just under £46k. Many debtors are small businesses or sole
traders who have not reopened for most of the year due to Covid
restrictions. However, a historic debt of nearly £20k, dating back to 19/20,
was collected.
We also collected 36.25% of in-district car parking debt; this is slightly
below the 40% target and is an deterioration on the previous year
(47.34%). Q4 was the same as Q3 at around 32.5%. This was as a result
of having to ground agents in response to the coronavirus pandemic.

6.11

Workforce

Page 65

7

This section incorporates the data previously reported in the Workforce
Digest Report.
6.12

Our workforce (Full Time Equivalent and headcount) has stayed roughly
the same since the previous year. Employee turnover has previously
been reported included seasonal and casual leavers. Other authorities do
not include them in reports to Local Government Association
benchmarking, allowing for a more meaningful comparison. Seasonal staff
have been excluded and the previous two years recalculated. In either
calculation, turnover is down in 2020/21 from 2019/20.

2018/19
Number of
employees (actual)

2020/21

1127

1082

1085

945

925.9

927.8

Employee turnover
(with seasonals)

16.1%

17.2%

11.4%

Employee turnover
(without seasonals)

14.6%

12.7%

9.7%

Number of
employees (FTE)

6.13

2019/20

The distribution of the workforce has remained consistent with previous
years, with the majority of staff distributed within frontline services; the
highest proportion of FTEs (24%) is within Parks and Environmental
Services:

Page 66

8

6.14

The age profile of our workforce follows the same pattern as the
previous year with the majority of our staff (71.44%) being aged 41 and
over. The average age of an HBC employee is 47.3, up from 46.8 in 19/20.
This is in line with the district’s average age in 2019 of 47.5.

Page 67

9

HBC Staff Age Breakdown by Financial Year
61 & Over
51-60
41-50
31-40
21-30
21 & Under

6.15

0.0%

5.0%
2020/21

10.0%

15.0%

2019/20

20.0%

2018/19

25.0%
2017/18

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

2016/17

It should be noted that the age profile for individual services differs
between services. CTS continues to have our youngest workforce, with an
average age of 42.2. Housing on the other hand has a much higher
average age of 50.6. The Organisational Development and People
Business Partners continue to work with service managers on workforce
planning; including succession planning and talent development.

6.16

There are slightly more men than women at HBC with 52.2% males to
47.7% females. As of 2019, the district had slightly more females to males
at 51.1% to 48.9%.

Page 68

10

6.17
77.5% of employees filled in ethnic origins data, meaning 22.5% were not
included. Of employees who shared their ethnicity through equalities
monitoring, the workforce for 2020/21 is mostly white, which is similar to
previous years and broadly representative of the district population. The
percentage of BAME employees has increased slightly from around 2%
last year to 2.7% for 2020/21. However, while more representative than
previous years, this does not yet reflect the district’s ethnic profile.
According to the last census in 2011, BAME people made up 3.7% of the
district’s population.

6.18

In 2020/21 we had 10 new apprenticeships, bringing the total number of
apprenticeships in the Council to 37. This is up from 28 the previous year.
12 of these 37 have completed their apprenticeships at various points
during the year. The Organisational People & Development Business
Partners are working with services to promote the apprenticeship scheme
to maximise the use of the apprenticeship levy.

6.19

Sickness absence was 4.36 days lost per FTE across the year. This is
well below our target of 8.2 days lost per FTE. This is a significant
decrease from the previous year’s figure of 7.75 in 19/20. Across all
quarters in 20/21, all targets were met by a large margin, with Quarter 2
having the highest days lost per FTE. The HR adviser team have managed

Page 69

11

to bring to a successful conclusion a number of long-term sickness cases
which will have also have had an impact on the days lost figures. The
reduction of around 44% on the previous year is broadly in line with
findings from the ONS from an April 2021 Economic Review into home
working which found that sickness absence rates for workers doing any
work from home was 0.9% compared with 2.2% for those who never
worked from home in their main job.
Sickness resulting from Coronavirus is not included in this calculation. This
is because it is difficult to know how many cases have occurred. It is also
difficult to say how many of those are genuinely days lost, as people with
mild cases have been able to work through their sickness when working
from home. The impact of home working on sickness has been significant
across the council, but particularly in services that are largely office based.
The number of days lost to colds and flus has plummeted. As restrictions
are eased and offices are opened up, we can expect this figure to rise in
the near future.
6.20

Stress/Depression caused the largest amount of days lost per FTE with
34.65%. However, the total number of days lost to stress is actually lower
at 1,368.5 days in 20/21 to 1,575 in 19/20. The higher proportion comes
from a significant reduction in the number of days lost due to Infections
(colds & flu). The second highest portion of days lost per FTE was due to
Musculo-Skeletal issues. This is followed by Stomach problems in third,
which overtook Infections which as third in 19/20.

6.21

We recognise that employee well-being is always something that continues
to be a priority for us, especially after a very challenging year. We will
continue to proactively support employees mental health including stress
and depression. Whilst additional support and resources were put in place
to support the pandemic, we will to continue to further develop our
wellbeing offering to support employees. These include access to our
employee assistance programme and wellbeing resources, training and

Page 70

12

events, our Listening Ear service and well-being champions.

6.22

Customer
Customer contact in 20/21 has either been by phone or online. Lockdown
has kept the face-to-face customer contact to around 2% and below. More
customer interaction took place online this year compared to previous
years. Q4 20/21 represents the first time that customer contact was split
nearly 50/50 between online and telephone. For customer online
contacts, HBC has significantly exceeded its target of 27% for every
quarter this year, and for the year overall.

Customer contact channel
120%
100%

16%

17%

80%

29%

37%

26%

25%

26%

36%

43%

31%

32%

68%

67%

2%

2%

47%

60%
40%

69%

67%

54%

53%

66%

69%

67%

60%

20%
0%

15%

16%

16%

11%

9%

Face to Face

6%

7%

Telephone

Page 71

4%

57%
0%

53%
0%

Online

13

Annual Customer Contact by Channel
2020/21

59.99%

2019/20 6.47%
2018/19

65.31%

14.18%

2017/18

28.22%

60.23%

18.96%
0%

25.58%

60.79%
20%

40%

Face to Face
6.23

39.22%

20.25%
60%

Telephone

80%

100%

Online

For quarter 4 there were 29 stage 1 and 10 stage 2 complaints. At stage 1
the completion % completed on time was 50%, whilst the completion rate
for stage 2 was 75%.
We had a total of 140 complaints at Stage 1 and 36 at Stage 2 during
2020/21. The completion rate for stage 1 within 10 working days was
51.5% down slightly from the previous year at 51.6%. This is well below the
target of 80%. The percentage completed within 25 working days for
stage 2 complaints was 81.1% an improvement on the previous year’s
figure of 79.6%. This year it met its target of 80%

6.24

Website availability averaged at 99.99% across the year; it continues to
be AA compliant.

6.25

As reported in previous years; the processing time for new Council Tax
Reduction (CTR) claims did not meet its 21 day target, with year-end
performance of 25.19 days. This performance is an improvement on last
year (27.38 days). Q3 of 2020/21 was the first time this particular PI hit its
target, whilst Q4 was only slightly over at 22 days. This has been the result
of improvement measures put in place. Performance is impacted by the
time it takes the DWP to assess and pay a Universal Credit (UC) claim.
We have streamlined our in-house information gathering procedure at the
start of the claiming process. However, we still have to wait for the DWP to
process a UC claim (a minimum of 5 weeks) before we can finalise the
CTR claim. Performance has also been impacted by Test and Trace which
has resulted in extra work.

6.26

We narrowly missed our 21 day processing target for new Housing
Benefit Claims; with a year-end outturn of 21.37 days. This is the first year
where the annual figure since 2017/18 where we have been close to the
target. This has been due to strong performances in Q3 and Q4 where the
21 day target was achieved.

Page 72

14

Benefit Processing Times - New Claims
33.3

35
29.43

24.65

23.37

25
20

28.56

28.15

30

22.05

20.74
22.2

21.68

20.71

23.6

25.21
22.27
20.98

15

16.6

10
Q1 2019/20

Q3 2019/20
New CT reduction benefit claims

Q1 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

New housing benefit claims

Annual benefit processing times - new claims
25.88

24.79

24.26

22.57

2017/18

2018/19

New CT reduction benefit claims

27.38

23.6

2019/20

25.19

21.27

2020/21

New housing benefit claims

6.27

We met our 6 day processing target for changes to CTR claims; with a
year-end outturn of 4.43 days, an improvement on the previous year figure
of 5.03 days. This PI has improved in performance each year since 17/18

6.28

We performed better than the 6 day processing target for changes to
Housing Benefit Claims; with a year-end outturn of 4.33 days; broadly
similar performance compared to the previous year (4.22).
The following two charts show the quarterly and annual performance for all
of these indicators:

Page 73

15

Benefit Processing Times - Changes to Circumstance
7
6
5.12

5.05

Days

5
4
3
3.29
2
2.22
1
0
Q1 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Changes to council tax reduction benefit

Q3 2020/21

Changes to housing benefit

Annual benefit processing times - change to
circumstance
7.49
6.2
5.03

6.64

2017/18

4.37

4.22

4.33

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Changes to council tax reduction benefit

6.29

4.43

Changes to housing benefit

Governance
We regularly monitor the number of FOI and data breaches (no targets are
set against these indicators). There were 811 FOI requests in 2020/21 this
is fewer than received in the previous year. 219 FOI requests were
received in Quarter 4, about the same as the previous quarter. The number
of requests going for appeal/review increased slightly in Quarter 4 to 3 from
1 in Quarter 3. The year-end outturn from FOIs which go to appeal have
decreased significantly from 17 in 2019/20 to 10 this year.
Number of FOIs and Data Breaches in 20/21

811

10

48

FOI requests

FOIs appealed/reviewed

Data breaches

Page 74

16

6.30

There were 48 data security breaches during 2020/21, this is significantly
lower than the amount in the previous year which was 85. We continue to
proactively encourage staff to report any data breach and any increase in
the numbers reported does not necessarily reflect a decrease in
performance and reflects the work carried out to promote the importance of
reporting data breaches.

7.0

CONCLUSIONS

7.1

MB are asked to consider the risk of not achieving the Delivery Plan
Supporting Projects highlighted in Appendix 1 and flagged as areas of
concern in section 6 of this report, however all of these have been
impacted by the coronavirus pandemic and as such mitigation will be
difficult.

7.2

High risk:
 Average length of stay in temporary accommodation (hostel and
B&B)
 HCC Income
 Number of new homes built by the council
Medium risk:
 Average time taken to re-let local authority housing

7.3

MB are asked to consider the Corporate Health performance reported
within this report. Revenue and debt collection has been impacted by the
pandemic as ability to collect on debts has not been able to take place as
normal. MB should pay attention to:




7.4

Non-domestic collection rates in particular with consideration to
other debt collections PIs.
Time taken to process new council tax claims.
Percentage of Stage 1 Complaints Completed within 10 Days

This report is focussed on the Delivery of the priorities within our Corporate
Delivery Plan. However, in addition to this, there has also been a number
of other achievements that contribute to our corporate priorities, including:
A strong
local
economy
A
sustainable
environment

Supporting
our
communities

We have administered millions of pounds in support grants
throughout the year to businesses across the district. We’ve
also offered advice to businesses on reopening in advance
of welcoming customers back to their premises (not for the
first time this year).
We worked with colleagues at North Yorkshire to improve
transport infrastructure in the west of Harrogate.
We have partnered with Co-Wheels car club to run a districtwide car club scheme. It has launched in Harrogate with new
sites in Knaresborough and Ripon to follow.
We helped to set up the NHS Nightingale Hospital in the
Convention Centre and now we are working to return to its
original purpose, ready to host events again in a few months.

Page 75

17

Excellent
public
services

This year The Local Fund is concentrating on those
organisations hit hardest by the pandemic. We have
contributed funds along with other local donors with the aim
of supporting small local voluntary, charitable and social
enterprise organisations.
We supported the successful delivery of the Census, which
will help inform how public services are delivered.
We’ve worked closely with other local government partners
this year. First, to produce a devolution deal back in
December. Second, we’ve collaborated with 5 other district
councils to put a proposal to government on the
reorganisation of local authorities in York and North
Yorkshire. This proposal will have a lasting impact on the
area so we helped to make a proposal to get change right.
We have supported other services through a difficult year
with more than 300 redeployments from other areas of the
Council. Colleagues from across the council including HCC
and CTS have performed a variety of tasks. This has
included leafletting, canvassing, community calls to
vulnerable people, gardening, loading refuse vehicles or
assisting with Housing. Some have enjoyed their new roles
so much that they have made the change permanent.

8.0

MB COMMENTS

8.1

Management Board felt that this year’s performance report has been a
good news story. The pandemic has been a major challenge for local
authorities everywhere, especially so after years of difficult financial
climate. Staff should be congratulated and commended for their
contributions which make Harrogate a high performing local authority. In
many cases this has included extra duties in supporting people and
businesses across the district.
Management board welcomes the positive sickness figures for this year
and are pleased to note the reduction in days lost due to stress over what
has been a difficult year. There is also the recognition that although the %
of employees of BAME origin has increased this year, this does not yet
reflect the district’s profile.
Based on the report, Management Board have identified homelessness
and temporary accommodation as an area of focus for the coming year.
Another area to focus on is the reopening of services as Covid guidelines
change and permit including hosting events again at HCC to assist the
economic recovery of the district. Management Board are looking at
complaints and considering how we can learn more from the data.

9.0

REQUIRED ASSESSMENTS AND IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The following were considered: Financial Implications; Human Resources
Implications; Legal Implications; ICT Implications; Strategic Property/Asset
Management Considerations; Risk Assessment; Equality and Diversity (the

Page 76

18

Public Sector Equality Duty and impact upon people with protected
characteristics). If applicable, the outcomes of any consultations,
assessments, considerations and implications considered necessary during
preparation of this report are detailed below.
Risk Statement
9.2

MB can also consider the interventions in place to mitigate against these
risks and confirm if these are adequate. In future these reports could
include risk assessments for those individual actions that have been rated
as ‘Red’ and will include an overall summary of Service Plan risks as well
as the Corporate Delivery Plan.

Background Papers – None

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Sarah Cornforth, Improvement &
Development Manager, Lawrence Fontana, Business Intelligence and
Performance Officer or Chris Watson, Business Intelligence and Performance
Officer, if you require any further information on the contents of this report. The
officer can be contacted at on 01423 500600 ext 56823, ext 58460, ext 58468 or
by e-mail – sarah.cornforth@harrogate.gov.uk
lawrence.fontana@harrogate.gov.uk christopher.watson@harrogate.gov.uk

Page 77

19

This page is intentionally left blank

Corporate Plan: Delivery Plan
Generated on: 16 April 2021

A strong local economy

We will do all we can to ensure changes to the way local government is structured across the whole of Yorkshire benefit us, our
residents and the services we provide

Page 79

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Devolution

31-Mar-2020

The Devolution Ask document has now been signed off by all 9
council's and submitted to the Government for consideration.

05-Jan2021

Maximise the use of land and buildings for growth; enabling local companies to stay and grow, and attracting inward investment into
the district.
Sustainable Harrogate 2024 Projects
The HCC development is progressing well, with Arcadis appointed as lead consultant for the Phase 1 Design Work to develop to RIBA Stage 4.
£584k PSDS grant funding has been secured to support the wider redevelopment. The Station Gateway project masterplan is progressing with
a Heads of Terms agreement to partner commitment being drafted. Progress is being aligned with the TCF (Transforming Cities Fund) which
now has funding of £11.7M. Analysis of the 1000 responses to Public consultation and taxi survey proposals are being analysed. The Ripon
Pool site work is positively progressing to meet the October 2021 delivery date. For the Clotherholme Urban Village at the former Ripon Barracks
site, Homes England are reviewing comments from the planning application and are keen for delivery by SME builders including Bracewell
Homes. Work has commenced to create more lettable units at Pheonix Business Park with a completion date of May 2021. Consultants were
appointed in January for the Strategic Housing & Employment Sites and a stakeholder communication strategy has been agreed to facilitate

1

regular engagement and input into the masterplanning options.
Work in partnership to address current and future operational barriers to business growth by securing investment and improvements
in digital infrastructure.
Progress of the 2024 Digital Harrogate projects
The first phase of the CityFibre build in Bilton is now finished and work has commenced in Starbeck. Around 18000 of the 50000 homes in
scope are ‘ready for service’ and residents will be able to utilise their new connectivity with internet service providers (e.g. Sky, Talk Talk etc).
CityFibre are engaging with a range of local groups e.g. Harrogate College; Harrogate in Bloom and Harrogate Theatre (with a view to
sponsoring the streaming of past shows). Approval to £350k investment has been received and a bid for funding has been successful in attaining
£3m contribution. Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) Programme - a supplier has been commissioned to deliver broadband to superfast speeds to
the hardest to reach areas. 93% of the district can access superfast speeds with a further 3,000 premises planned in Phase 4. Around 35km of
fibre has been laid in Harrogate and Knaresborough to connect public sector sites.

Page 80

The digital skills and inclusion project was accelerated with the launch of ‘Get Digital’. There are now 28 external and 24 internal Champions
signed up to access the resources that can be emailed or printed off to assist those who need help to do something digitally. There has been
involvement from 30 VCS groups. The branding, web page launch and marketing strategy has been successful. The project is now been
replicated by other Councils sharing HBC best practise. This project has now become business as usual within the service area.
The procurement process has commenced and the Smart Parking contract will be extended for 2 years with an option to extend a further year.
This proposal aligns with the LGR timelines and the likely life of the existing sensors.
Promote the Harrogate Convention Centre as widely as possible so we attract new events to the district and grow its income to
support our local economy
Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

HCC Overall Income

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

This is currently an estimate of
income for full year 20/21 as final
£5,220,39 £4,197,09 £2,672,93 £2,920,50 £3,040,28 £4,760,00
07-Apraccounts are not yet completed.
0.00
1.00
7.00
9.00
7.00
0.00
2021
This income relates to recharges
for pass through costs for the NHS

2

Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Nightingale as the venue has been
closed for the full financial year.
£29,025,6 £18,000,0
19.00
00.00

Economic Impact of HCC

Performance Indicator

£0.00

£0.00

2018/ 2019/
2020/21
19
20
Value

Value

Value

Target Status

Short
Trend

£0.00

No Economic Impact as the venue
was closed for the full year due to 07-AprNHS Nightingale / industry closed 2021
due to pandemic.

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

This is currently an estimate of income for full year 20/21
as final accounts are not yet completed. This income
relates to recharges for pass through costs for the NHS
07-Apr-2021
Nightingale as the venue has been closed for the full
financial year.

Economic Impact of HCC

£55,2
52,23
9.00

NO EI as venue closed full year due to NHS Nightingale /
indsutry closed due to pandemic.

Page 81

HCC Overall Income

£4,63 £5,22 £3,04 £4,76
2,461. 0,390. 0,287. 0,000.
00
00
00
00

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Harrogate Convention Centre site review

£29,0
25,61
9.00

£0.00

Due Date

07-Apr-2021

Responsible Officer Notes

Arcadis have been appointed as lead consultant for the Phase 1
design work to develop this to RIBA Stage 4. Cabinet approval will
be required to continue with the works after cost certainty is
achieved at RIBA 4. Survey and Investigation work is now
underway.

31-Mar-2021

Soft market testing is being carried out for the package of work to
include business planning updates, Economic Impact Assessment
and Full Business Case development. This will help to finalise the
brief and agree a route for procurement.

3

Note
Date

08-Apr2021

Works with others to ensure that there is a strong economic recovery across the district from the impact of COVID19
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Covid19 Economic Recovery Plan

Note
Date

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

31-Mar-2021

Performance is on target but must bear in mind that this is a live
document that responds to economic conditions and policy
announcements often at short notice. A refreshed plan was taken to 15-AprCabinet on 31st March ‘21 that outlined amended timescales for
2021
each of the phases; Survive (April 20 - June 21), Recover (July 21 March 22), Thrive (March 22 onwards).

Page 82

Attracting investment opportunities into the district

A sustainable environment

Ensure plans are in place for sustainable development across the district
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Work towards adoption of a New
Settlement DPD

31-Mar-2021

Following close of the Reg 18 consultation we are now looking at
the timeline for the next stages.

09-Apr2021

Community Infrastructure Levy

31-Mar-2021

CIL was adopted by Council in July and the project is complete.
We have moved in to implementation.

07-Oct2020

31-Jul-2021

The planning application is likely to be taken to committee in
June/July following work that NYCC are currently undertaking to
look at the detail of the transport assessment. Proactive
discussions between SOB partners continue in terms of looking at
opportunities for delivery of quality placemaking on the site.

26Mar2021

Clotherholme Urban Village

4

Expected
Outcome

Note
Date

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Local Plan Implementation

31-Mar-2021

Amendments are being made to the SPD's in light of consultation
comments and will be taken to Cabinet Member in due course.

Future of Town Centres

14-Apr2021

A wide range of projects are underway to support town centres
across the district, particularly in relation to a comprehensive work
programme underway linked to the Council's Economic Recovery
Plan. This includes a range of initiatives linked to Reopening the
15-AprHigh Street Safely and maximising the economic use of open
2021
spaces as well as specific town centre projects such as the
Transforming Cities Fund, refurbishment of Knaresborough High
Street shops and progression of the Ripon Renewal project. Town
centres will remain a key focus in 2021/22.

31-Mar-2021

Page 83

Ensure the implementation of the Council’s carbon reduction commitments and promote sustainable choices.
Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Tonnages of household
waste not sent for reuse,
recycling or composting

7,519.87

8,264.81 8,075.65 8,096.27

7,837.78

8,125

Cumulative Percentage of
household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting

44.46%

46.54%

42.83%

42.57%

41%

Tonnage of household
waste recycled

3,472.44

6,804.84 6,597.96 4,951.67

3,813.76

Performance Indicator

46.83%

2018/ 2019/
2020/21
19
20

Responsible Officer Notes

5

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

Note
Date

Value

Value

Value

Target Status

Tonnages of household waste not sent for reuse,
recycling or composting

31,30
7.12

29,58
0.13

32,27
4.51

32,50
0

Tonnage of household waste recycled

20,34
6.21

20,26
2

22,16
8.23

Cumulative Percentage of household waste sent for
re-use, recycling and composting

40.14
%

44.46
%

42.57
%

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Short
Trend

41%

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Page 84

Work continues on all Strategic and Sustainable Transport
Priorities. The Transforming Cities Fund OBC was submitted to
WYCA on 1/3.21 with approval expected on 28/4/21 and which
point an uplift in funding is set to be approved. Work on the FBC
now starts. The council has been supporting NYCC on their activity
travel proposals, including securing permission for safety signage
15-Apron the Stray at Beech Grove. The Otley Road Cycleway has
2021
secured permission from the Duchy of Lancaster for the use of
Stray land, a decision is awaited on approval of the byelaws from
MHCLG. The A59 Knaresborough - York feasibility study is
progressing well with a final report expected in early May. The
ULEV strategy phase 1 implementation report was approved by
cabinet 31/3/21.

Strategic and Sustainable Transport
31-Mar-2021
Priorities

Carbon reduction strategy review:
Public and business surveys due to close on Friday 26th Feb. The
results will feed into the strategy review and Coalition planning.
Carbon Reduction Strategy
Implementation

31-Mar-2021

Green Homes Grant:
We are continuing work with YNY LEP and other partners on a joint
bid for the Local Authority Delivery element of this grant scheme.
There are ongoing and significant issues with the supply chain for

6

08-Apr2021

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

most energy efficiency measures which is causing difficulties on
delivery.
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme:
Funding awarded and project due to start as follows:
HCC
Grant award: £576,461
Anticipated carbon savings: 71 tonnes CO2 p.a

Page 85

Planned low carbon elements:
•

LED lighting

•

Solar PV

•

Variable Speed Drives

•

Air Source Heat Pumps

•

Pipework Insulation

Hydro
Grant award: £1,838,337
Anticipated carbon savings: 577 tonnes CO2 p.a
Planned low carbon elements:

7

Note
Date

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

•

Air Source Heat Pump

•

Solar PV

•

Battery storage

•

Chiller Upgrade

•

Building Energy Management System

Note
Date

Climate Change coalition:

Page 86

February AGM agreed to restructure the board and set the coalition
up as a community interest company, allowing it to be a separate
body from the council. Prof. Neil Coles (Leeds Uni) elected as chair.
Phil Ireland is vice-chair.
The coalition has agreed an ambitious action plan but the same
issues remain about coalition members having capacity and
resources to do this effectively (establishing the coalition as an
independent body may help with accessing external funding).
On comms and engagement a major piece of work now is planning
for an October engagement campaign (the month before the UN
Glasgow summit). Currently coalition members are canvassing
local groups to encourage support. Queens Suite provisionally
booked for a conference day on 15th October. It’s anticipated that a
certain amount of funding will be from the council, in particular
underspends on the existing comms budget. Some coalition
members are getting Carbon Literacy (CL) accreditation to act as
trainers under the CL scheme.
Implement the ULEV Action Plan

31-Mar-2021

The ULEV Action Plan runs until March 24 to align with the

8

07-Apr-

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Strategy. The first phase implementation plan for the roll-out of EV
charging points has been approved by Cabinet on 31/3/21.
Charging points are being implemented as part of the Ripon Pool
and Phoenix Business Park developments that complement the
EVCPs at the Civic Centre and Conyngham Hall.

Note
Date

2021

Improve the ambience of town centres
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Page 87

Events Strategy

BIDs

Develop CV19 parking recovery
plan

Note
Date

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

30-Apr-2020

A short term Events plan has been approved along with the
covid recovery plan. This includes planning two leisure
tourism marketing campaigns to support the economic
21-Aprrecovery of Harrogate District’s visitor economy. The first
2021
campaign will go live on 17th May. Longer term, the Events
Strategy will be presented with the Destination Marketing Plan
in late autumn.

31-Mar-2020

Due to business interruption resulting from the covid pandemic the
BID ballots for Ripon and Knaresborough are anticipated to be 3
June and 8 July respectively. Reports will be brought to Cabinet
regarding evaluating business plans in due course.
The COVID19 car park recovery plan (and associated
communications plan) has been completed, approved and
implemented in order to achieve safe reopening.

31-Mar-2021

Develop and implement an action
plan to maintain the ambience of 31-Mar-2021
our town centres

A wide range of projects are underway to support town centres
across the district, particularly in relation to a comprehensive work
programme underway linked to the Council's Economic Recovery

9

20-Apr2021

08-Jul2020

15-Apr2021

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Note
Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Plan. This includes a range of initiatives linked to Reopening the
High Street Safely and maximising the economic use of open
spaces as well as specific town centre projects such as the
Transforming Cities Fund, refurbishment of Knaresborough High
Street shops and progression of the Ripon Renewal project. Town
centres will remain a key focus in 2021/22.

Supporting our communities

Page 88

Ensure people have the opportunity to live and work in the district because they have access to high-quality housing which meets
their needs and matches their income level.
Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

Number of affordable homes
delivered (gross)

Number of new homes

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

345

30

105

215

363

275

The target has again been
exceeded. This is due to a buoyant
housing market fuelled by pent-up
demand from the early days of the
pandemic and government
‘incentives’ such as the stamp duty 08-Aprholiday. House builders have been 2021
building at pace, with the majority
of affordable housing delivered
through planning policy and the
council making a direct and
significant contribution to the total.

0

0

3

0

19

7

We had planned for 25 completions 08-Apr-

10

Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

built/converted by the
council

Page 89
Not measured for Quarters

2018/1 2019/2
2020/21
9
0
Value

Number of affordable homes delivered
(gross)

Note
Date

in 2020-21 (19 in Spa Lane, three 2021
in Valley Road, Darley, and three in
Fairfax Avenue) and had planned
for these to complete gradually
through the year: The 19 in Spa
Lane (comprising the new Fern
House homeless hostel) completed
in Q4 but, the remaining six which
we anticipated completing in 202021 have suffered from delays
caused primarily by issues
achieving approval from Yorkshire
Water for the sites. We now expect
the three Valley Road properties to
complete in Q2 of 2021-22 and the
three Fairfax Avenue properties to
complete in Q3 of 2021-22.

Not
Number of homes bought by measured
the council
for
Quarters

Performance Indicator

Responsible Officer Notes

259

Value

345

Value

363

Target Status

Short
Trend

250

11

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

The target has again been exceeded. This is
due to a buoyant housing market fuelled by
pent-up demand from the early days of the
pandemic and government ‘incentives’ such as
the stamp duty holiday. House builders have

08-Apr-2021

Performance Indicator

2018/1 2019/2
2020/21
9
0
Value

Value

Value

Target Status

Short
Trend

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

been building at pace, with the majority of
affordable housing delivered through planning
policy and the council making a direct and
significant contribution to the total.

Number of new homes built/converted by
the council

Page 90

16

3

22

25

Number of homes bought by the council

32

4

25

15

Expected
Outcome

We had planned for 25 completions in 2020-21
(19 in Spa Lane, three in Valley Road, Darley,
and three in Fairfax Avenue) and had planned
for these to complete gradually through the
year: The 19 in Spa Lane (comprising the new
Fern House homeless hostel) completed in Q4
but, the remaining six which we anticipated
08-Apr-2021
completing in 2020-21 have suffered from
delays caused primarily by issues achieving
approval from Yorkshire Water for the sites. We
now expect the three Valley Road properties to
complete in Q2 of 2021-22 and the three Fairfax
Avenue properties to complete in Q3 of 202122.

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Housing Development Company

31-Mar-2021

Home are being sold by the company as they are finished.
Bracewell has been matched to future sites and these homes will
be marketed when complete. Performance is on target.

14-Apr2021

31-Mar-2021

Work is progressing well in relation to the West Harrogate
Parameters Plan, Ripon Renewal Project and council owned
strategic sites project.
The account management work is well advanced and much more

26Mar2021

Implement the Housing Delivery
Action Plan

12

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Note
Date

Responsible Officer Notes

embedded within working practices. Our intelligence around
progress on sites is much better and we are building stronger
relationships with the development industry.
We are setting up a Partner Forum as another means of proactively
engaging with the development industry.
PSEG and Housing & Property have a strong working relationship
and recently secured a joint funding bid to support site delivery.
We are continuing engagement with Homes England across a
number of sites.

Page 91

Work together to halve rough sleeping, prevent and reduce homelessness and assist homeless households in finding long term
affordable and sustainable housing.
Traffic
Light
Icon

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q4 2020/21
Performance Indicator

Average length of stay in
temporary B&B
accommodation (weeks)

Value

3.08

Value

9.82

Value

Value

7.36

7.63

13

Value

8.58

Target

3

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

This figure is inflated
unrepresentatively by the tenancy
of a specific customer who requires
certain facilities that are not
currently available within any of our
09-Aprhostels, necessitating a long2021
duration stay in B&B
accommodation. The completion
of our new hostel, Fern House, in
April, however, should see a
welcome reduction in the number

of and length of stays in B&B
accommodation.

Average Length of stay in
temporary hostel
accommodation (weeks)

14.23

13.38

16.28

20.99

15.25

12.00

Page 92

CHP41 remains high in Q4
(although lower than last quarter)
due to the dual challenges of
sourcing appropriate alternative
accommodation for our currentlyaccommodated customers who
have specific support needs and of 09-Aprmoving people on from temporary 2021
accommodation during a
pandemic. Numbers in temporary
accommodation have remained
consistently high throughout this
reporting period, reflecting the
increased demand on our services.
This PI is very slightly below the
target but shows a significant
improvement since the start of the
year.

Average time taken to re let
local authority housing
(days)

Households living in
temporary accommodation

13.22

51

43.48

53

27.15

13.47

63

56

14

15.19

56

15

60

Quarter 4 has seen several longer
repair periods and the struggle that 09-AprAllocations had letting a couple of 2021
sheltered units. If we excluded
the very longest duration for a
sheltered let (70 days for 20 Maple
Creek), the figure is lowered to
14.79 and would be below the
target.
The figure for CHP40 had
increased very high in Q2 but was
reduced in Q3 and remains at this
lower level. Officers continue to

09-Apr2021

work with our Allocations Team and
Neighbourhood Services Team to
secure social accommodation for
our customers in temporary
accommodation, meanwhile also
pursuing alternative options
through the private sector. It is
likely that this figure will remain
high as we slowly ease out of
lockdown.

Performance Indicator

2018/ 2019/
2020/21
19
20
Value

Page 93

Average length of stay in temporary B&B
accommodation (weeks)

5

Value

Value

Target Status

Short
Trend

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

This figure is inflated unrepresentatively by the
tenancy of a specific customer who requires
certain facilities that are not currently available
within any of our hostels, necessitating a longduration stay in B&B accommodation. The
09-Apr-2021
completion of our new hostel, Fern House, in
April, however, should see a welcome reduction
in the number of and length of stays in B&B
accommodation.

2.82 8.67 3

Average time taken to re let local authority
housing (days)

15.72 13.29 24.82 15

This indicator is off target, primarily, as a result
of the Coronavirus Pandemic. The pandemic,
especially in Q1, prevented access to properties
which lead to a high of 43.48 days which is
09-Apr-2021
inflating the annual the average. Q4 was within
acceptable tolerances at 15.19 days against a
target of 15.

Households living in temporary
accommodation

42

The figure for CHP40 had increased very high in
Q2 but was reduced in Q3 and remains at this 09-Apr-2021
lower level. Officers continue to work with our

51

56

60

15

Performance Indicator

2018/ 2019/
2020/21
19
20
Value

Value

Value

Target Status

Short
Trend

Responsible Officer Notes

Note Date

Allocations Team and Neighbourhood Services
Team to secure social accommodation for our
customers in temporary accommodation,
meanwhile also pursuing alternative options
through the private sector. It is likely that this
figure will remain high as we slowly ease out of
lockdown.

Page 94

CHP41 remains high in Q4 (although lower than
last quarter) due to the dual challenges of
sourcing appropriate alternative accommodation
for our currently-accommodated customers who
have specific support needs and of moving
09-Apr-2021
people on from temporary accommodation
during a pandemic. Numbers in temporary
accommodation have remained consistently
high throughout this reporting period, reflecting
the increased demand on our services.

Average Length of stay in temporary hostel
6.00 14.57 17.80 12.00
accommodation (weeks)

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Deliver the Spa Lane development

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

The hard work of both the In House Development Team and the
Housing Options Team has resulted in this property being
14-Aprcompleted and the first residents have been welcomes to the facility 2021

31-Mar-2021

Since the recreation of the role in March 2019 up to March 2021
there has been a reduction in properties that have been empty for
07-Aprfive years or longer. In March 2019 there were 95 properties in this
2021
category and today this figure stands at 72. That is a 25% decrease
of properties empty for more than five years.

Continue to enforce our Empty
Homes Strategy through compulsory 31-Mar-2021
and/or voluntary purchases

16

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

From April, Council Tax on empty properties empty for ten years or
longer will increase to 400%. This follows last year’s increase on
properties empty for five years or longer paying 300% Council Tax
and two years or longer the year before paying 200% Council Tax.
This further incentivises homeowners to get their properties
occupied again.
Properties are continuing to be contacted, scored and encouraged
to get occupied again following the Empty Homes Strategy. Those
that are not taking the necessary steps are progressing along the
strategy.

Page 95

The first CPO continues to be processed with an additional report to
compulsory purchase the garage approved. The second approved
CPO is now progressing to a sale with completion expected in the
coming months.
The purchase of another empty property is expected in the next few
days returning the property to the Council Housing Stock.
Offers continue to be made to homeowners to purchase their empty
properties to enable them to be occupied again.
The Empty Homes Loan (delayed due to issues around access and
processing with the Coronavirus) is expected to be available as the
lockdown is eased. This will enable homeowners the opportunity to
receive assistance in undertaking necessary works to get a
property occupied again.
Further CPO action to ensure long-term empty homes are occupied
and not remaining empty with a review of the next property to
request approval to progress to CPO.

17

Note
Date

Help our residents build secure, safe and healthy lives in thriving communities

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Page 96

Co-ordinate response to EU BREXIT 31-Mar-2021

The work required in this reporting year has been completed. A
09-Aprfurther review to assess any post Covid impact has been scheduled
2021
for November 2021 and included in the 2021/22 Service Plan.

Health and Well Being Action Plan

Health aspects put on hold. Wider work paused or included in
COVID Recovery plan

19Aug2020

Completed and approved by Cabinet Member Housing and Safer
Communities 29 September 2020: Harrogate District Community
Safety Hub - an evaluation of activity, demand and impact during
2019-2020.

02-Oct2020

31-Mar-2021

Develop and manage the
Community Safety Hub and deliver
North Yorkshire and York
31-Mar-2021
Community Safety Strategy & Action
Plan

Excellent public services

As a thriving district council, we will continue to find innovative and effective ways to manage our resources whilst ensuring they
reflect our priorities
Progress of the Commercial Harrogate 2024 projects
In Q3 Trade waste reported exceeding their Key Performance Indicator of 155 new customer sites for the year, Q4 has seen a further increase
of 24 new customer sites secured. There has been a trend over the last 4 weeks of new customers. Demand for our service and pricing has
increased from new businesses ahead of our usual marketing in Q1 of 21/22. The Trade Waste team are actively restarting collections based on
the government release dates.

18

Commercial trials at the horticultural nursery continue to yield success with the busy Christmas period now coming to a close. The team have
exceeded both their budget target and stretch target, with income standing at £133k as at 23 December (15% greater than the budget and 26%
greater than the total income for last year). Particular successes included a partnership with Stockeld Park to sell Christmas trees at Harlow Hill,
which drove secondary spend at the nursery shop for items such as poinsettias, winter bedding, Christmas wreaths and houseplant gifts.
The commercial success of Q3 at the horticultural nursery has continued into Q4 with valentines and mothers day sales greater than expected
with customers utilising the online click and collect and click and deliver service more. Income has increased to £153,477, 23.11% up on budget
for the year, which was an increase of £36,977 from Q3. In Q1 21/22 the team will be introducing new environmentally friendly initiatives of
recycled trays and pots, trials of 100% peat free compost and alternative growing methods, e.g. growing plants vertically in a hydroponic system
in readiness for the summer sales starting in May.
A planning pre-application has been submitted for the proposed Pet Cremation Service. The projected delivery date is currently Q2 2021/22.

Page 97

The establishment of a Local Authority Controlled Company (LACC) to run the council’s Sport & Leisure services, Turkish Baths and Community
centres is continuing with a view to this being in place by August 2021. Work is currently underway to develop the operating contract and to
review the arrangements for TUPE. Alongside this, the Leisure Investment, which includes investment in a new site in the East of the District and
redevelopment of the Hydro site is progressing.
The Turkish Baths have reopened, for treatments only, due to the current government restrictions.
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Enhance the council's use of digital
and social media to develop our own 31-Mar-2021
channels

19

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

This is a piece of work which has no real end date as there will
always be an ongoing need to review (and develop) our own
communication channels, especially in light of a shifting media
landscape and changes to the way our residents consume news
more generally. In 2020 alone, we have lost one local radio station
but gained two new "news" websites in the district. We continue to
see Residents' News as a key tool for us given its reach and there
could be opportunities to expand into other areas (podcasts/TV) in
the future, subject to skills, experience and resources being
available.

07-Oct2020

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Devise an integrated HR & OD
Strategy (including culture change,
leadership & development and
succession planning)

Capital & investment programme

Delivery of ICT Development Plan

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

People strategy drafted and endorsed by MB. Waiting for HR
Committee approval then the strategy will be ready to launch.
31-Mar-2022

Actions are being added to projects so that progression can be
monitored and reported to MB on a quarter basis.

09-Apr2021

Page 98

01-Mar-2021

Through service planning process, agreed to delete action of wider
13-Aprreview in light of LGR
2021

31-Mar-2021

The previously agreed development plan for 20/21 was revised in
line with the impacts of the pandemic and budget pressures.
Revised plan and timelines (per project ) have been agreed . New
action plan required for 21/22 and 22/23.

06-Apr2021

Move existing Corporate Websites
to new Photon content management 31-Mar-2021
system

Photon based websites went live on Thursday 22 October 2020 as
16-Aprplanned. The continuing maintenance of these sites becomes
2021
business as usual

Build and Launch new corporate
websites

Photon based websites went live on Thursday 22 October 2020 as
16-Aprplanned. The continuing maintenance of these sites becomes
2021
business as usual

31-Mar-2021

Prepare for a further Corporate Peer
31-Mar-2021
Challenge

This is no longer a priority and should be removed.

08-Apr2021

Work with our public and voluntary sector partners to ensure that our communities can access inclusive, joined up services to
improve the quality of life across the Harrogate district.
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Partnership support for HDPSLB

31-Mar-2021

PSLB meeting in March cancelled due to chief officer availability.
Continue to provide electronic updates and share information.

01-Apr2021

20

Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Note
Date

Will continue to deliver community covid-19 recovery plan as main
partnership activity

Ensure that the council responds to the challenges and impacts of COVID19 and adapts accordingly
Expected
Outcome

Action Title

Due Date

Responsible Officer Notes

Covid recovery plans have been produced and updated on a
regular basis.

Development and implementation of
31-Mar-2021
a COVID19 recovery plan for HBC

Page 99
21

Note
Date

08-Apr2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Corporate Health Report

Scorecards Title

Customer
Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Page 101

Percentage of stage 2 complaints responded to within 25 working days

93%

100%

79%

80%

75%

80%

Percentage of stage 1 complaints responded to within 10 working days

40%

38%

63%

54%

50%

80%

Time taken to process new council tax reduction benefit claims

28.56

33.3

24.65

20.74

22.05

21

35.52%

42.91%

30.72%

31.56%

47.15%

27%

Time taken to process new housing benefit claims

29.82

25.21

22.27

16.6

20.98

21

Time taken to process changes to council tax reduction benefit

4.17

5.56

3.86

3.24

5.05

6

Time taken to process changes to housing benefit

2.06

4.83

4.38

5.88

2.22

6

Service Level Agreement - first point of contact

92%

91%

88.67%

89.33%

89.67%

80%

99.96%

99.98%

99.99%

100%

99.99%

98%

Number of service complaints received

388

263

293

196

264

Number of stage 1 complaints received

32

23

35

23

22

Number of stage 2 complaints received

5

6

12

5

6

Customer Contact Volume - Online (%)

Website availability

1

Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Total number of complaints received

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Page 102

425

292

340

224

292

Customer Contact Volume - Total

96,465

63,479

70,587

64,928

110,237

Customer Contact Volume - F2F

3,989

0

1,259

1,059

27

Customer Contact Volume - Telephone

58,208

36,241

47,643

43,375

58,235

Customer Contact Volume - Online

34,268

27,238

21,685

20,494

51,975

Customer Contact Volume - F2F (%)

4.14%

0%

1.78%

1.63%

0.02%

Customer Contact Volume - Telephone (%)

60.34%

57.09%

67.5%

66.8%

52.83%

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Website AA compliance

Number of formal complaints received

37

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Not measured for Quarters

29

47

28

28

Scorecards Title

Financial
Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected

97.20%

29.30%

58.30%

84.30%

91.90%

98.00%

% of in-district debt recovered (parking)

25.2%

30.2%

49.7%

32.55%

32.55%

40%

Legal Services: Debt Recovery

41.47%

0%

0%

59.12%

11.88%

60%

2

Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Percentage of total sundry debt over 90 days old
% of Council Tax collected
Percentage of in-year sundry debt collected

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

22%

21%

21%

12%

26%

13%

97.90%

29.30%

56.70%

84.90%

97.50%

98.00%

98%

83%

85%

83%

94%

95%

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Scorecards Title

Governance

Page 103

Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Number of FOI requests

245

167

214

211

219

Number of FOI requests which go to appeal/review

5

6

0

1

3

Number of data security breaches

20

9

10

11

18

Number of data security breaches referred to ICO

1

1

0

0

1

Scorecards Title

Workforce
Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Annual appraisal

3

Not measured for Quarters

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Traffic
Light
Status

Short
Term
Trend
Arrow

Performance Indicator

Working Days Lost Due to Sickness Absence (HBC) (LGA measure)

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Target

1.55

Internal Coaching and mentoring – Number of coaching/ mentoring relationships
started

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Yorkshire Accord – Number of coaching/mentoring relationships started

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Page 104

Apprenticeships - Number of New Apprentices

0.58

1.25

0.89

1.15

Not measured for Quarters

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Not measured for Quarters

Not
measured
for
Quarters

4

3

2

1

4

Sickness absence (HBC) - Short term (days)

0.93

0.35

0.5

0.57

0.55

Sickness absence (HBC) - Long term (days)

0.89

0.17

0.83

0.61

0.81

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Apprenticeships - Number of Ongoing Apprenticeships

4

2.05

Not measured for Quarters

Not
measured
for
Quarters

Agenda Item 9

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
Overview and Scrutiny Commission:
Key Decisions on the current Forward
Plan that are yet to be taken
The council publishes a Forward Plan which details the key decisions that are scheduled
to be taken by the Cabinet, a Member of the Cabinet or a designated Chief Officer in
accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information)
(England) Regulation 2012. These decisions need to be published on the Forward Plan at
least 28 clear days before the decision is to be taken.
Key decisions
A Key Decision is an Executive decision which is likely
(a) to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of
savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for the
service or function to which the decision relates; or
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area
comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the local
authority; and regard must be had to guidance issued by the Secretary of State to
determine the meaning of “significant”.
The Council has fixed the following financial thresholds for deciding whether a Cabinet
decision is a Key Decision. It must involve:


revenue expenditure of £150,000 or more



savings of £50,000 or more



capital expenditure of £250,000 or more



decisions made by the Chief Executive, in exercise of emergency powers only,
£300,000

Key decisions can be subject to the Overview and Scrutiny call-in procedure. Only urgent
Key Decisions aren't subject to this and don't have to be published in the Forward Plan.
If you would like further information on any of the items shown in this Forward Plan please
contact the respective officer(s) for each item.
For general information about the decision-making process and for copies of any
documents outlined in the Forward Plan please contact Democratic Services, Harrogate
Borough Council, Civic Centre, St Luke’s Avenue, Harrogate HG1 2AE or
democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk following their publication.

Page 105

Reference

Date of Decision

Decision Maker

Title

032HP19

26 May 2021

Cabinet

HIP Kitchen
Refurbishments Acceptance of
Tender

Reason for Key
Decision
It will involve capital
expenditure of
£250,000 or more.

Contact
Simon Hobbs,
Executive Officer
(Property Services)
simon.hobbs@harro
gate.gov.uk

040HP19

Page 106

043PSEG19

Before 30 Jun 2020

21 July 2021

Cabinet

Cabinet

Appointment of
suppliers for the
provision of
asbestos testing and
removal services

It will involve
revenue expenditure
of £150,000 or
more.

Proposed Granting
of Right of Access
over Council owned
Land

James Clemans,
Operations Manager
james.clemans@har
rogate.gov.uk
Jonathan Dunk,
Executive Officer –
Strategic Property
and Major Projects

jonathan.dunk@harr
ogate.gov.uk
20HCC20

21CTS20

3 Mar 2021

23 Jun 2021

Leader

Cabinet

HCC Event Booking It will involve revenue
Management System expenditure of
£150,000 or more.

Claire Trott,
Commercial
Manager (HCC)

claire.trott@harrogat
econventioncentre.c
o.uk
Procurement of new It will involve revenue Jeanette Packwood,
Leisure Management expenditure of
Sport and Leisure
System
£150,000 or more.
Manager
jeanette.packwood
@harrogate.gov.uk

Reference

Date of Decision

Decision Maker

27PSEG20

6 Apr 2021

Cabinet Member for Royal Hall Roof
Resources, Enterprise Repairs and
and Economic
Refurbishment
Development (Deputy
Leader)

Page 107

31PSEG20

26 May 2021

32HP20

Not before 26th May
2021

33CA20

26 May 2021

Title

Reason for Key
Contact
Decision
It will involve revenue Nigel Thompson,
expenditure of
Strategic Property
£150,000 or more.
Manager

nigel.thompsondts@harrogate.gov.
uk
Cabinet
Ripon Business
It will involve decisions Michael
Improvement District that will have a
Constantine, Head
significant effect on
of Operations
those living or working
in an area comprising michael.constantine
two or more wards in @harrogate.gov.uk
the area of the
authority.
Cabinet Member for Contract for the
It will involve revenue Lorraine Larini,
Resources, Enterprise provision of Water
expenditure of
Compliance
and Economic
Monitoring Services £150,000 or more.
Manager
Development (Deputy for the prevention of
Leader)
Legionella in Council
Lorraine.Larini@harr
properties
ogate.gov.uk
Cabinet

Postal Collection and It will involve revenue
Delivery of Letters and expenditure of
Parcels - Contract
£150,000 or more.
Renewal

Gemma Barnes,
Senior Workplace
Support Officer
Gemma.Barnes@ha
rrogate.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Agenda Item No. 10

REPORT TO:

Overview and Scrutiny Commission

DATE:

10 May

SERVICE AREA:

Legal and Governance

REPORTING OFFICER:

Scrutiny, Governance and Risk Manager
Mark Codman

SUBJECT:

Scrutiny Update and Scrutiny of Health
Representative 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL DISTRICT

FORWARD PLAN REF:

N/A

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of the report is to provide an update to the Commission on
previous work identified prior to the COVID-19 pandemic and an overview of
meetings in 2021/22. It is useful to provide this information before the
Commission considers and agrees its focus for the 2021/22 year at its
meeting on 7 June.

1.2

This report also provides the opportunity to confirm Harrogate Borough
Council’s representative on the North Yorkshire Scrutiny of Health
Committee.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

(1) It is recommended that the Commission notes the draft schedule of
meetings and previous work identified (listed at paragraph 3.5 and 3.6).
(2) It is recommended that the Commission confirms Harrogate Borough
Council’s representative on the North Yorkshire Scrutiny of Health
Committee.

3.0

THE REPORT
Work in 2020/21

3.1

On 6 July 2020 it was agreed the then current work programme would be
put on hold due to the COVID-19 pandemic. It was agreed that the focus for
the year would be the Council’s response and recovery from Covid-19.

3.2

This did not mean that new items of work could not be considered, only that
they would be considered against the agreed focus or undertaken if the
Commission agreed that they were a priority.

Page 109

3.3

The work of the Commission regarding the Council’s response and recovery
from Covid-19 has been undertaken over the past year at several meetings
concentrating on three separate strands:





3.4

Financial – 6 July 2020, 28 August 2020, 7 December 2020, 1
February 2021 (update was integrated with regular performance
meeting)
Community – 6 July 2020, 28 September 2020, 7 December 2020
and 10 May 2021
Economic – 6 July 2020, 3 August 2020, 7 December 2020 and 10
May 2021

Due to the unique nature of the issue the Commission agreed to progress
the review of the UCI event. This work had commenced and was due to be
undertaken by a task and finish group. Meetings took place throughout the
year and updates on the progress of this review were provided at
Commission meetings.
Work in 2021/22

3.5

The schedule of Commission meetings is detailed below with some
provisional items of work that fulfil the responsibilities of the Commission:
Date
10 May

7 June

June/July
TBC
5 July
16 Aug
6 Sept
27 Sept
18 Oct
8 Nov
6 Dec
10 Jan
17 Jan
31 Jan
28 Feb
28 Mar
25 April

Meeting focus
- Covid-19 Response and Recovery - Economic and
Community Update (agreed focus for Scrutiny in
2020/21)
- Corporate Performance 2020/21 – year end – Cabinet
26 May
- Scrutiny Focus 2021/22
- Overview and Scrutiny Draft Annual Report 2019/20
and 2020/21
Informal work planning/training
Performance – Q1 – Cabinet 18 Aug
Medium Term Financial Strategy - Cabinet 15 Sept
(document to be circulated six weeks prior to this date)
Crime and Disorder Meeting (North Yorkshire Police and
HBC Community Safety Hub)
Performance – Q2 – Cabinet 10 Nov
Informal budget
Budget
Performance – Q3 – Cabinet 2 Feb
Crime and Disorder Meeting (North Yorkshire Police and
HBC Community Safety Hub)
North Yorkshire Police Chief Constable (Special Meeting)

Page 110

Previous work identified
3.6

The following items of work were identified by the Commission for
consideration in its work programme.
a) Task and Finish Groups




UCI (ongoing and to be considered as part of the work programme
for 2021/22)
Local Bus Provision (to be considered as part of the work programme
for 2021/22)
Implementation of Statutory Guidance Recommendations (to be
considered as part of the work programme for 2021/22)

b) Work items:





3.7

Double Taxation
Housing Delivery in the Nidderdale AONB
Criteria for Referral to Planning Committee
Commuted Sums/CIL
Agency Workers

It is intended that the above are discussed at a prioritisation workshop to
agree the Commissions work programme for 2021/22. This will consider all
previously submitted items of work together with any additional work items,
taking into account the agreed focus for the year. The focus is to be agreed
by the Commission on the 7 June 2021.
North Yorkshire Scrutiny of Health Committee Representative

3.8

In North Yorkshire the county council has the lead responsibility for health
scrutiny and it has established the Scrutiny of Health Committee. A
representative from each council within North Yorkshire is included on this
committee. Harrogate Borough Council’s representative is a Member of the
Overview and Scrutiny Commission. For 2019/20 and 2020/21 this has
been Councillor Nigel Middlemass with Councillor Tom Watson as deputy. It
is proposed that these nominations continue in 2021/22.
Scheduled meetings of the Scrutiny of Health Committee are below:



Friday 18 June 2021
Friday 10 September 2021

4.0

REQUIRED ASSESSMENTS AND IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The following were considered: Financial Implications; Human Resources
Implications; Legal Implications; ICT Implications; Strategic Property/Asset
Management Considerations; Risk Assessment; Equality and Diversity (the
Public Sector Equality Duty and impact upon people with protected
characteristics).

Page 111

5.0

CONCLUSION

5.1

The purpose of the report is to provide an update to the Commission and to
enable the Commission to confirm representation on the Scrutiny of Health
Committee.

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Scrutiny, Governance & Risk Manager
(Mark Codman), if you require any further information on the contents of this
report. The officer can be contacted at Legal and Governance, PO Box 787,
Harrogate, HG1 9RW or on 01423 500600 (ext. 58595) or by e-mail –
mark.codman@harrogate.gov.uk

Page 112

